
THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF THE 
SUPREME COURT OF 

PENNSYLVANIA 
 
 
In Re: : No.   Disciplinary Docket No. 

:   - Supreme Court 
: 

David Tevis Shulick : No.   DB   
: 
: Attorney Registration No. 74333 
: 

PETITION FOR REINSTATEMENT :            (Montgomery County) 
 

 
PETITION 

 

 AND NOW, this 21 day of June 2024, David Tevis Shulick petitions for 

reinstatement to the Bar of the Supreme Court of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 

and in support thereof states as follows: 

1. On October 12, 2023, your Petitioner was Disbarred on Consent by Order of the 

Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, which disbarment became effective on October 12, 

2023, and retroactive to September 11, 2018. 

2. The terms of disbarment imposed by the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania having 

expired on September 11, 2023, your Petitioner desires reinstatement to the Bar of the 

Supreme Court of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

 3. Your Petitioner believes and therefore avers that he has the moral qualifications, 

competency and learning in law required for admission to practice in this 

Commonwealth and that his resumption of the practice of law within the Commonwealth 



will be neither detrimental to the integrity and standing of the Bar nor of the 

administration of justice nor subversive of the public interest. 

4. Further, your Petitioner has completed and submits herewith his Reinstatement 

Questionnaire in support of the instant Petition. 

 WHEREFORE, your Petitioner respectfully prays that this Honorable Board refer 

this Petition to a Hearing Committee so that a Hearing on the within Petition may be 

held and, it is prayed, your Petitioner be readmitted to the Bar of the Supreme Court of 

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

       s/Robert W. Sink 
       Robert W. Sink  
       Attorney Id. 73201 
       Law Offices of Robert W. Sink 
       1417 Crosby Dr. 
       Fort Washington, PA 19034 
       Tel: 215-995-1000 
       rsink@sinklawoffices.com 
 
       Attorney for David Tevis Shulick 
 

Date: June 21, 2024   
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 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
 FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 
 
IN THE MATTER OF:   : MISCELLANEOUS 
     : 
DAVID T. SHULICK   : NO. 18-mc-0171 

   

          ORDER 

 AND NOW, this 18th day of June, 2024, respondent having been ordered 

on June 13, 2024, to show cause, within thirty (30) days, why he should not be 

disbarred on consent from the practice of law in this court, retroactive to September 

11, 2018, and respondent having answered and not requested a hearing, it is hereby 

 ORDERED that respondent is disbarred on consent from the practice of 

law in this court, retroactive to September 11, 2018, and until further order of this court.  

   

     BY THE COURT: 

 

    

                    __s/Mitchell S. Goldberg______             
     MITCHELL S. GOLDBERG 
     Chief Judge 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
Eastern District of Pennsylvania 

United States Courthouse 
601 Market Street, Room 2609 
Philadelphia, PA 19106-1797 

 
 

George Wylesol                                                      Clerk’s Office                                           
 Clerk of Court                                                                                                        215-597-7704     
 

 
June 18, 2024 
 
 
 
 
David T. Shulick 
1499 Wesleys Run 
Gladwyne, PA  19035 
 
Dear Mr. Shulick: 
 

In response to your request, you were admitted to the United States 
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania on March 24, 1998,  
and are currently listed as being disbarred on consent with the United States 
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.   
 
 Please feel free to contact Gail Olson of my staff at 267-299-7060 if you 
require additional information on this matter. 

 
Sincerely,   

 
 
                        
Clerk of Court 

 
 
 
 
By:  /s/ Gail R. Olson                    _                                              
       Gail R. Olson, Deputy Clerk 
                                                                                                                                                           











EXHIBIT TO 
QUESTION 9(b) 

Instructions 6(d) and 6(e)







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT TO 
QUESTION 9(c)(ii) 



IN THE UMTED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UMTED STATES OFAMERICA CBIMINAL NO. 16-

DATE FILED: October 11,2016

VIOLATION:
lE U.S.C. $ 371 (conspiracy to
embezzle from a program
receiving federal funds - L count)
18 U.S.C. S 666(A)(1XA)
(embezzlement from a program
receiving federal funds - I count)
18 U.S.C. $ 1343 (wire fraud - 4
counts)
18 U.S.C. $S 1344 and 2 (bank fraud
- 1 count)
18 U.S.C. SS 1014 and 2 (false
statement to a bank - 1 count)
26 U.S.C. S 7206(1) (filing false tax
returns - 3 counts)
Notices of Forfeiture

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

BACKGROUND

At times relevant to this indictment:

1. The School District ofPhiladelphia ("SDP") provided

elementary, middle, and high school education to students in Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania.

-1-
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2. SDP provided alterlative education for high school students who

had difficulty succeeding in school due to discipline or attendance problems. The

SDP Multiple Pathways program provided an accelerated program for students who

had attended high school but had poor attendance or had dropped out of school

altogether.

3. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK was the sole shareholder of

Delaware Valley High School Management Corporation ('D\rHS"). D\rHS had

various wholly owned subsidiaries including Unique Educational Experiences, Inc.

('UEE). Defendant SHULICK was the President of UEE. D\IHS and UEE had

offices at 2 Ln,gan Square, Suite 1900, in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. UEE

contracted with school districts, including SDP, to operate schools which provided

education services to high school students in Phi-Iadelphia, Bucks County,

Montgomery County, and Berks County, Pennsylvania.

4. In June 2009, Chaka Fattah Jr., charged elsewhere, was hired

as an employee of DVHS. Fattah Jr. owned and operated a business entity called

259 Strategies,LLC ('259 Strategies"). In March 2010,259 Strategies entered into

the fust of three contracts with UEE. Under the terms of these contracts, 259

Strategies was to serve as the certified minority business enterprise for, and provide

services to, UEE related to UEE's contracts with SDP. During 2010 and 2011,259

Strategies received over $500,000 from UEE pursuant to its contracts with UEE.

Also during 2010 and 2011,259 Strategies made payments to persons who were

1

Case 2:16-cr-00428-HB   Document 1   Filed 10/11/16   Page 2 of 24



workitrg for defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and UEE. At times during 2010 and

2011, Fattah Jr. held the title of Chief Development OfEcer and Chief Operating

Offrcer for UEE

UEE Obtains the Contract for the SDP Southwest School

5. In or around September 2008, SDP issued Request for Proposal

233 ('RFP 233") seeking bids from education companies to provide alternative

education to at-risk students.

6. In or around the summer of2010, SDP cancelled the contract of

a company that was operating several schools for SDP, including a Multiple

Pathways program school located at 6404 Elmwood Avenue, in Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania (the "Southwest School").

7. UEE submitted a proposal pursuant to RFP 233 to educate the

students at the Southwest School for the 2010-2011 and 20ll-20L2 school years.

8. UEE and SDP entered into a contract effective July 1, 2010 ('the

Contract"), in which UEE agreed to provide educational services to SDP students

enrolled at the Southwest School.

9. The Contract provided that SDP would pay UEE $2,143,274

over the two years ofthe Contract, and in return, UEE would perform the

educational services described in the Contract, as well as the work described in a)

the School District Statement of Work provided by SDP; b) RFP 233; c) UEE's

Statement of Work submitted in response to the RFP; and d) UEE's budget.

-3-
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10. Pursuant to the Contract, UEE agreed to operate a Multiple

Pathways program at the Southwest School which would educate high school

students who previously had difficulty attending school and completing the

requirements necessary to obtain a high school diploma.

11. Pursuant to the Contract, UEE also agreed to provide,

counseling seryices for students at the Southwest School.

12. The Contract also included, as an attached exhibit, a two-year

budget that defendant DAVID T. SHULICK submitted to SDP.

13. SDP and UEE entered into an amended contract for school year

2OLl-20t2 ("the Amended Contract"). The Amended Contract, which was effective

July 1, 2011, made mi-nor changes to the Contract, including reducing the overall

compensation to be paid to UEE for the two-year period to 92,096,000.

14. The Amended Contract also included a budget for school year

2OLI-20L2 which UEE submitted to SDP in or around July 2011.

THE CONSPIRACY

15. Beginning in or around September 2010, and continuing until in

or around February 20L2, tn Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

defendant,

DAVID T. SHULICK

and Chaka Fattah Jr. conspired and agreed together to commit an offense against

the United States; namely, that defendant DA\IID T. SHULICK and Fattah Jr

-4-
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being agents of the School District of Philadelphia, which during one-year periods

beginning July 1, 2010, and continuing until June 30, 2011, and beginning Juty 1,

2011, and continuing until June 30,2012, received federal benefits in excess of

$10,000, under a federal program involving a grant, contract, subsidy, loan,

guarantee, insurance and other form of federal assistance, would embezzle, obtain

by fraud and otherwise without authority knowingly convert to the use of any

person other than the rightful owner, and intentionally misapply, property valued

at $5,000 or more which was owned by, and was under the care, custody, and

control of the School District of Philadelphia, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 666(aXlXA).

MANNERANDMEANS

It was part ofthe conspiracy that:

16. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and Chaka Fattah Jr.

misrepresented to the School District of Philadelphia the educational serrrices that

would be provided to students at the Southwest School, and the true costs ofthose

services, in part by submitting false budgets to the School District of Philadelphia.

Defendant SHULICK and Fattah Jr. inflated the costs ofthe services actually

provided and failed to provide other serrices that they had agreed to provide under

the terms of the contract. In doing so, defendant SHULICK and Fattah Jr.

fraudulently obtained funds from the School District of Philadelphia that were

supposed to be used to educate students. Defendant SHULICK and Fattah Jr.

-5-
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used those funds to enrich themselves and advance their personal business

interests

In particular:

17. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and Chaka FattahJr.,

submitted budgets to SDP that contained a) false entries for benefit costs; b)

inflated staff salaries; and c) salaries for staff positions that were never filled at the

Southwest School

18. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and Chaka Fattah Jr. operated

the Southwest School with a minimum of labor and maintenance costs and failed to

provide services required under the Contract and the Amended Contract, including

psychological and counseling services.

19. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and Chaka Fattah Jr.

maintained secret budgets reflecting the true expenditures associated with

operating the Southwest School.

20. At the end ofthe school year in 2011, defendant DAVID T.

SHULICK caused teachers who were employed at the Southwest School to be laid

off to avoid paying their salaries.

21. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and Fattah Jr. directed a

portion ofthe payments from the Contract aud the Amended Contract to pay

expenses of UEE incurred in providing education services to schools in Bucks

-6-
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County, Pennsylvania.

22. Defendant DA\IID T. SHULICK misused payments from the

Contract and the Amended Contract to pay his personal expenses. Specifically,

defendant SHULICK caused checks to be drawn on the account of UEE and made

payable to numerous contractors who performed work at SHULICK s residence and

vacation homes, as well as to persons who performed housekeeping and nanny

services for SHULICK.

23. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICKand Chaka FattahJr.

concealed, misrepresented, and hid, and caused to be concealed, misrepresented,

and hidden, the existence and purpose ofthe conspiracy and the acts done in

furtherance of the conspiracy.

OYEBTACTS

In furtherance ofthe conspiracy and to accomplish its objects,

defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and Chaka Fattah, Jr., committed the following

overt acts in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere:

1. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK signed a contract with SDP in

which UEE agxeed to operate a Multiple Pathways program at the Southwest

School.

2. On or about September 27 , 2010, defendant DAVID T.

SHULICK submitted to SDP a budget for the Contract for the Southwest School.

3. On or about October 20,2010, defendant DAVID T. SHULICK

-7-
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submitted to SDP a revised two-year budget for the Contract for the Southwest

School.

4. On or about July 13, 2011, Chaka Fattah Jr. submitted a budget

for the Amended Contract for school year 2011-2012 to SDP.

5. In or around November 2011, defendant DA\IID T. SHULICK

signed the Amended Contract on behaU of UEE.

6. At various times during 2010, 2011, alrd.2012, defendant DAVID

T. SHULICK caused to be submitted to SDP invoices detailing the amounts owed to

UEE pursuant to the Contract and the Amended Contract

7. Atvarious times during 2010, 2011, ar;.d2Ol2,defendant DAVID

T. SHULICK caused to be deposited into UEE's bank account payments made by

SDP pursuant to the Contract and the Amended Contract.

8. At various times during 2010 and 2011, defendant DAVID T.

SHULICK and Fattah Jr. directed that UEE pay a portion ofthe proceeds ofthe

Southwest Contract to 259 Strategies so that 259 Strategies could pay Person K for

services rendered in Bucks County, Pennsylvania.

9. During 2010, 2011, and2o12, defendant DAVID T. SHULICK

caused checks to be drawn on the account of UEE and made payable to numerous

contractors who performed work at SHULICKs residence and vacation homes, as

well as to persons who performed housekeeping and nanny services for defendant

SHULICK

-8-
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10. At the end ofthe 2010-2011 school year, defendant DA\1D T.

SHULICK caused teachers who were employed at the Southwest School to be laid

off to avoid paying their salaries.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

-9-
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COUNT TWO

THE GRAND JURY FURTHEB CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs l through 14 and paragraphs 16 - 23 of Count One

are incorporated here.

2. From on or about October 28,2011, to at least on or about

August 6, 2012, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant,

DAVID T. SHULICK,

an agent ofthe School District of Philadelphia, which during a one-year period

beginning July 1, 201I, and continuing until June 30, 2012, received federal

benefits in excess of $10,000, under a federal program involving a grant, contract,

subsidy, Ioan, guarantee, insurance, and other form of federal assistance,

embezzled, obtained by fraud and otherwise without authority knowingly converted

to the use of any person other than the rightfi.rl owner, and intentionally

misapplied, property that was valued at $5,000 or more and was owned by, or under

the care, custody, and control of the School District of Philadelphia, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Section 666(a)(1XA).

- 10-
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COUNTS THREE THROUGH SD(

THE GBAND JURYFURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs l through 14 of Count One are incorporated here.

The Scheme to Defraud

2. Between in or around July 2010, through at least in or around

August 2O12, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and

elsewhere, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

and, at certain times, with Chaka Fattah Jr. knowingly and with intent to defraud,

devised and intended to devise, a scheme to defraud the School District of

Pbiladelphia, and to obtain money and property from the School District of

Philadelphia, by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and

promrses.

4. Defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and Chaka Fattah Jr.

misrepresented to the School District of Philadelphia the educational services that

would be provided to students at the Southwest School, and the true costs ofthose

services, in part by submitting false budgets to the School District of Philadelphia

Defendant SHULICK and Fattah Jr. inflated the costs ofthe services actuallv

provided and failed to provide other services that they had agreed to provide under

the terms of the contract. In doing so, defendant SHULICK and Fattah Jr.

-11-
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fraudulently obtained funds from the School District of Philadelphia that were

supposed to be used to educate students. Defendant SHULICK and Fattah Jr.

used those funds to enrich themselves and advance their personal business

interests.

Manner and Means

5. It was part ofthe scheme to defraud that defendant DAVID T.

SHULICK and Chaka Fattah Jr. engaged in the manner and means described in

paragraphs 16 - 23 ofCount One ofthis indictment.

Acts in Furtherance ofthe Scheme

6. On or about the dates set forth below, defendant DAVID T.

SHULICK, and at times with Chaka Fattah Jr. executed and attempted to execute

the scheme and artifice to defraud and to obtain money by means of false and

fraudulent preteDses, representations, and promises, by transmitting and causing

to be transmitted by means of wire ia interstate commerce the following wire

communications in the form of writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds, each

communication constituting a separate count:

-12-
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Count Interstate Wire Communication On or about
the date oft

Electronic transmission of deposit information
from Citizen's Bank, from the Federal Reserve
Bank of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, to the
Federal Reserve processing center in East
Rutherford, New Jersey

t0t28t20rr

4 Electronic transmission of deposit information
from Citizen's Bank, from the Federal Reserve
Ban-k of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, to the
Federal Reserve processing center in East
Rutherford, New Jersev

ril2u20tL

D Electronic transmission of deposit information
from Citizen's Bank, from the Federal Reserve
Bank of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, to the
Federal Reserve processing center in East
Rutherford, New Jersev

2t2u2012

b Electronic transmission of deposit information
from Citizen's Bank, from the Federal Reserve
Bank of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, to the
Federal Reserve processing center in East
Rutherford, New Jersev

71t012072

AII in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

- 13-
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COUNT SEVEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTTIER CHABGES THAT:

l. Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Count One are incorporated here.

At times material to this count of the indictment:

2. PNC Bank was a financial institution the deposits of which were

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. PNC Bank had branches in

the Philadelphia area, including a branch located at 1600 Market Street, in

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

3. On or about July 1, 2005, Chaka Fattah Jr. entered into a loan

agreement with PNC Bank in which PNC agreed to loan $15,000 to Fattah Jr. and

Fattah Jr. agreed to repay the loan, with interest.

4. Chaka Fattah Jr. defaulted on his obligations to repay the loan

to PNC Bank.

5. In or around November 2009, the balance owed by Chaka Fattah

Jr. on the PNC Bank loan was approximately $17,693.

6. In or around May 2009, defendant DAVID T. SHULICK signed

an employment agreement on behalf of D\IHS in which DVHS hired Chaka Fattah

Jr. at an annual salary of $75,000.

The Scheme to Defraud PNC

7. Beginning in or around than November 2009, and continuing

until in or around July 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

-t4-
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Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

and Chaka Fattah Jr., knowingly devised and participated in a scheme to defraud

PNC Bank, by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and

promrses.

8. It was part of the scheme defendant DAVID T. SHULICK and

Chaka Fattah Jr. agreed that they would falsely represent to PNC Bank that

Fattah Jr. had very little income with which to repay the PNC loan.

9. It was also part ofthe scheme that defendant DAVID T.

SHULICK would act as Fattah Jr.'s lawyer and threaten PNC Bank with the

possibility that Fattah Jr. may frle bankruptcy if he were unable to resolve his

outstanding debts, which would result in the bank receiving little or no repayment

on the loan.

10. It was also part of the scheme that defendant DAVID T.

SHULICK and Chaka Fattah Jr. wou-Id conceal from PNC Bank the fact that

defendant SHULICKs companies were regularly paying Fattah Jr. a salary of

$75,000 per year beginning in or around July 2009.

11. It was a.Iso part of the scheme that defendant DA\TD T.

SHULICK and Chaka Fattah Jr. would conceal from PNC Bank that, based on an

agreement signed in or around March 2010, the compensation paid to Fattah Jr. in

-15-
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2010 would be much higher than the salary Fattah Jr. had been paid in 2009 and

early 2010.

12. It was also part of the scheme that on or about March 26, 2010,

defendant DAVID T. SHULICK caused a letter to be sent to PNC Bank, offering to

settle PNC Bank's claim for $2,500, which letter attached a Small Business

Administration Offer in Compromise form containing Chaka Fattah Jr.'s financial

statement, which form stated that Fattah Jr.'s monthly income was $2,500.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1344 and
Section 2.

- 16-
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COUNTEIGHT

THE GRAND JUBYFURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Count One are incorporated here.

Paragraphs l through 5 of Count Seven are incorporated here.

2. On or about March 26, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

knowingly made and caused to be made to PNC Bank a false statement for the

pulTose of inlluencing in any way the action of PNC Ban-k upon a 915,000 loan

made to Chaka Fattah Jr., doing business as 259 Strategies. SHULICK submitted a

form on behalf of Fattah Jr. which claimed, among other things, that Fattah Jr.'s

monthly income was $2,500. In fact, defendant SHULICK knew that SHULICKs

company, UEE, was at that time contractually obligated to pay Fattah Jr. a salary

of $75,000 per year, and had been makiag regular payments ofthat salary to Fattah

Jr. since in or around July 2009.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1014 and 2.

-17-
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COUNT NINE

THE GRAND JURYFURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. On or about October 15, 2010, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

willfully made and subscribed a United States income tax return, Form 1040, for

the calendar year 2009, which was verffied by a written declaration that it was

made under the penalty of perjury and filed with the Internal Revenue Service

which defendant SHULICK did not believe to be true and correct as to everv

material matter, in that the return reported taxable income of 9125,804, when in

fact, as SHULICK knew, he had approximately 9117,458 in additional taxable

income, and he had improperly claimed at least approximately $12,420 of itemized

deductions.

In violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(1).

- 18-
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COUNT TEN

THE GRAND JURYFURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. On or about April 15, 2011, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

willfully made and subscribed a United States income tax return, Form 1040, for

the calendar year 2010, which was verified by a written declaration that it was

made under the penalty ofperjury and filed with the Internal Revenue Service

which defendant SHULICK did not believe to be true and correct as to everv

material matter, in that the return reported taxable income of negative $144,676,

when in fact, as SHULICK knew, he had 948,332 in additional taxable income, and

he had improperly claimed $18,372 of itemized deductions.

In violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(l).

-19-
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COUNT ELEVEN

THE GBAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. On or about April 15, 2012, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

wi-llf'ully made and subscribed a United States income tax return, Form 1040, for

the calendar year 2011, which was verified by a written declaration that it was

made under the penalty ofperjury and filed with the Internal Revenue Service,

which defendant SHULICK did not believe to be true and correct as to every

material matter, in that the return reported taxable income of $8,914, when in fact,

as SHULICK knew, he had $89,916 in additional taxable income, and he had

improperly claimed $13,690 of itemized deductions.

In violation ofTitle 26, United States Code, Section 7206(L).

-20-
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FIRST NOTICE OF FOBFEITURE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. As a result ofthe violations of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 666(aX1)(A), set forth in this indictment, defendants

DAVID T. SHULICK

shall forfeit to the United States of America any property, real or personal, which

represents or is traceable to the gross receipts obtained, directly, or indirectly from

a violation of section 666(a)(1) of Title 18 ofthe United States Code.

2. If any ofthe property subject to forfeiture, as a result ofany act

or omission of the defendant:

(a) cannot be Iocated upon the exercise ofdue diligence;

O) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction ofthe Court;

(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be

divided without diffi culty;

then it is the intent ofthe United States, in accordance with Title 21, United States

Code, Section 853(p), to seek forfeiture ofany other property of the defendants up to

the value of the property that is subject to forfeiture.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 981(a)(1)@)(i)

and 28 United States Code, Section 2461(c).

-21-
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SECOND NoTICE OF FORFEITURE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. As a result ofthe violations of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1343, set forth in this indictment, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

shall forfeit to the United States of America: (a) any property, real or personal,

which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to violation of such offense

or a conspiracy to commit such ofrense.

2. If any ofthe property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act

or omission of the defendant:

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

O) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction ofthe Court;

(d) has been substantially di-inished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be

divided without difficulty;

then it is the intent ofthe United States, in accordance with Title 21, United States

Code, Section 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other property ofthe defendants up to

the value ofthe property that is subject to forfeiture.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 981(a)(1)(C)

and 28 United States Code, Section 2461.
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THIRD NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

THE GBAND JURY FURTHER CHABGES THAT:

1. As a result of the violations of fitle 18, United States Code,

Section 1014 and 1344, set forth in this indictment, defendant

DAVID T. SHULICK

shall forfeit to the United States of America any property constituting or derived

from, proceeds the person obtained directly or indirectly, as a result of such a

violation.

2. Ifany of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act

or omission of the defendant:

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction ofthe Court;

(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be

divided without difficulty;

then it is the intent ofthe United States, in accordance with Title 21, United States

Code, Section 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other property ofthe defendants up to

the value of the property that is subject to forfeiture.

-23-
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All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(2)(A).

A TRUE BILL:

GBAND JURY FOREPERSON

ZANE DAVID
United States Attorney

-24-
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Date Filed # Docket Text

10/11/2016 1  INDICTMENT as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1) count(s) 1, 2, 3-6, 7, 8, 9-11.
(Attachments: # 1 Civil Cover Sheet) (jwl, ) (Entered: 10/11/2016)

10/13/2016 2  Minute Entry for proceedings held before MAGISTRATE JUDGE LYNNE A.
SITARSKI: IA/PTD/ARR as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1) Count 1,2,3-6,7,8,9-11 held on
10/13/2016. The Govt and defense have agreed to conditions of release. See attached
conditions of release order. Plea entered by DAVID T. SHULICK: Not Guilty on all
counts. Counsel have 14 days to file pretrial motions. Signed by United States Magistrate
Judge Lynne A. Sitarski. Court Reporter: ESR.(tomg, ) (Entered: 10/14/2016)

10/13/2016 3  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE HOPE C. LEFEBER appearing for DAVID T.
SHULICK (tomg, ) (Entered: 10/14/2016)

10/13/2016 4  ORDER SETTING CONDITIONS OF RELEASE AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1)
THAT THE DEFT IS RELEASED ON BAIL IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 O/R WITH
THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS AS OUTLINED HEREIN. Signed by
MAGISTRATE JUDGE LYNNE A. SITARSKI on 10/13/2016.10/14/2016 Entered and
Copies E-Mailed. (tomg, ) Modified on 10/14/2016 (tomg, ). (Entered: 10/14/2016)

10/13/2016   O/R Bond Entered as to DAVID T. SHULICK in amount of $ 50,000. (tomg, ) (Entered:
10/14/2016)

10/18/2016 5  NOTICE Regarding United States Passport for Criminal Defendant as to DAVID T.
SHULICK (ap, ) (Entered: 10/18/2016)

10/19/2016 6  NOTICE OF HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK JURY TRIAL SET FOR 5/8/2017
10:00 AM IN COURTROOM 16-A BEFORE HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE III.
(km, ) (Entered: 10/19/2016)

10/19/2016 7  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III :
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/19/2016.(ap, ) (Entered:
10/19/2016)

10/19/2016 8  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE ABOVE CAPTIONED CASE IS
SPECIALLY LISTED FOR TRIAL TO COMMENCE ON 5/8/2017 AT 10 AM IN
COURTROOM 16A. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
10/19/2016.10/19/2016 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 10/19/2016)

10/19/2016 9  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THE CASE TAKEN AS A WHOLE IS SO
UNUSUAL AND SO COMPLEX, ETC.; WHEREFORE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH 18

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153015801052
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115801053
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115809420
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115809428
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115809447
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115821209
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115821650
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115821674
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115821689


U.S.C.§3161(H)(7)(A),(B), THE COURT FINDS THAT THE ENDS OF JUSTICE
SERVED BY GRANTING THIS CONTINUANCE OUTWEIGH THE BEST
INTERESTS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE DEFENDANT IN A SPEEDY TRIAL AND,
THEREFORE, ORDERS THIS CASE CONTINUED TO MAY 8, 2017. Signed by
HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 10/19/2016.10/19/2016 Entered and Copies
E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 10/19/2016)

10/19/2016 10  FIRST SCHEDULING ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THE PARTIES SHALL
FILE AND SERVE, ON OR BEFORE 1/18/2017, ANY PRETRIAL MOTIONS
TOGETHER WITH SUPPORTING BRIEFS, ETC.; FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE
IN CHAMBERS AT 9:30 AM ON 5/8/2016; TRIAL WILL COMMENCE WITH JURY
SELECTION AT 5/8/2017 AT 10 AM. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III
on 10/19/2016.10/19/2016 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 10/19/2016)

11/22/2016 11  MOTION for Protective Order Concerning Disclosure of Discovery Material by USA as
to DAVID T. SHULICK. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 11/22/2016)

11/28/2016 12  PROTECTIVE ORDER CONCERNING DISCLOSURE OF DISCOVERY MATERIAL
AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
11/28/2016.11/28/2016 ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(tomg, ) (Entered:
11/28/2016)

01/10/2017 13  SECOND SCHEDULING ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE FIRST
SCHEDULING ORDER DOC 10 IS VACATED; THE PARTIES SHALL FILE AND
SERVE, ON OR BEFORE 2/24/2017, ANY PRETRIAL MOTIONS TOGETHER WITH
SUPPORTING BRIEFS, ETC.; EACH PARTY SHALL FILE AND SERVE PROPOSED
POINTS FOR CHARGE AND ANY PROPOSED SPECIAL JURY
INTERROGATORIES AND MOTIONS IN LIMINE: GOVERNMENT ON OR
BEFORE 4/24/2017; DEFENDANT ON OR BEFORE 5/1/2017; THE COURT WILL
HOLD A FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE IN CHAMBERS AT 9:30 AM ON
5/8/2017. TRIAL WILL COMMENCE WITH JURY SELECTION AT 10 AM ON
5/8/2017 IN COURTROOM 16A. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
1/9/2017.1/10/2017 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 01/10/2017)

02/23/2017 14  MOTION to Continue Trial Date by DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE)
(Entered: 02/23/2017)

02/24/2017 15  MOTION TO DISMISS COUNT SEVEN OR EIGHT OF THE INDICTMENT by
DAVID T. SHULICK. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A)(LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on
2/27/2017 (ap, ). (Entered: 02/24/2017)

02/24/2017 16  MOTION to SEVER COUNTS SEVEN AND EIGHT OF THE INDICTMENT by
DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 2/27/2017 (ap, ). (Entered:
02/24/2017)

02/24/2017 17  MOTION TO SUPPLEMENT MOTIONS UPON RECEIPT OF MATERIAL
PURSUANT TO DISCOVERY AND REVIEW OF EXISTING DISCOVERY by DAVID
T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 2/27/2017 (ap, ). (Entered: 02/24/2017)

02/24/2017 18  DEFENDANT DAVID SHULICKS MOTION TO COMPEL DISCOVERY AND
PRODUCTION OF EXCULPATORY EVIDENCE by DAVID T. SHULICK.
(LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 2/27/2017 (ap, ). (Entered: 02/24/2017)

02/24/2017 19  MOTION for Order Granting Early Return Of Trial Subpoenas by USA as to DAVID T.
SHULICK. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 02/24/2017)

03/06/2017 20  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III :
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 3/6/2017.(ap, ) (Entered:

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115821764
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115897916
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153115903383
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https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116099256
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https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116120395


03/06/2017)

03/06/2017 21  ORDER as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1) THAT THE 19 MOTION FOR EARLY
RETURN OF TRIAL SUBPOENAS IS GRANTED AS OUTLINED HEREIN. Signed
by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 3/6/2017.3/6/2017 ENTERED AND
COPIES E-MAILED.(ap, ) (Entered: 03/06/2017)

03/06/2017 22  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT COUNSEL NEEDS ADDITIONAL TIME
TO PREPARE; WHEREFORE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH 18 U.S.C.§3161(H)(7)(A),
(B), THE COURT FINDS THAT THE ENDS OF JUSTICE SERVED BY GRANTING
THIS CONTINUANCE OUTWEIGH THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE PUBLIC AND
THE DEFENDANT IN A SPEEDY TRIAL AND, THEREFORE, ORDERS THIS CASE
CONTINUED TO SEPTEMBER 19, 2017. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY
BARTLE, III on 3/6/2017.3/6/2017 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered:
03/06/2017)

03/06/2017 23  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE ABOVE-CAPTIONED CASE IS
SPECIALLY LISTED FOR TRIAL TO COMMENCE ON 9/19/2017 AT 10 AM IN
COURTROOM 16A. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
3/6/2017.3/6/2017 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 03/06/2017)

03/06/2017 24  THIRD SCHEDULING ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE SECOND
SCHEDULING ORDER IS VACATED, ETC.; EACH PARTY SHALL FILE AND
SERVE PROPOSED POINTS FOR CHARGE AND ANY PROPOSED SPECIAL JURY
INTERROGATORIES AND MOTIONS IN LIMINE AS FOLLOWS: GOVERNMENT
ON OR BEFORE 9/5/2017; DEFENDANT ON OR BEFORE 9/12/2017. THE COURT
WILL HOLD A FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE IN CHAMBERS AT 9:30 AM ON
9/19/2017; TRIAL WILL COMMENCE WITH JURY SELECTION ON 9/19/2017 IN
COURTROOM 16A. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
3/6/2017.3/6/2017 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 03/06/2017)

03/17/2017 25  NOTICE OF HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK JURY TRIAL SET FOR 9/19/2017
10:00 AM IN COURTROOM 16-A BEFORE HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE III.
(km, ) (Entered: 03/17/2017)

03/28/2017 26  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III :
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 3/28/2017.(ap, ) (Entered:
03/28/2017)

03/28/2017 27  FOURTH SCHEDULING ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE THIRD
SCHEDULING ORDER DATED 3/6/2017 IS VACATED, ETC.; THE COURT WILL
HOLD A FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE IN CHAMBERS AT 9:30 AM ON
9/19/2017. TRIAL WILL COMMENCE WITH JURY SELECTION AT 10 AM ON
9/19/2017. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 3/28/2017.3/29/2017
Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 03/29/2017)

04/11/2017 28  RESPONSE to Motion by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 15 MOTION to Dismiss
filed by USA (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 04/11/2017)

04/11/2017 29  RESPONSE to Motion by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 16 MOTION to Sever filed
by USA (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit)(DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 04/11/2017)

04/11/2017 30  RESPONSE to Motion by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 18 MOTION to Compel
filed by USA (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 04/11/2017)

04/18/2017 31  REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 16 MOTION to Sever
(LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 04/18/2017)

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116120405
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116099321
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04/18/2017 32  REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 18 MOTION to Compel
(LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 04/18/2017)

04/18/2017 33  REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 15 MOTION to Dismiss
(LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 04/18/2017)

04/28/2017 34  NOTICE OF HEARING ON MOTION in case as to DAVID T. SHULICK 15 MOTION
to Dismiss : MOTION HEARING SET FOR 5/9/2017 09:30 AM IN COURTROOM 16-
A BEFORE HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE III. (km, ) (Entered: 04/28/2017)

05/09/2017 35  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16A: Oral Argument as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/9/2017. Ms.
Lefeber addresses the court regarding defendant's motion to dismiss count 7 or 8 (Doc.
#15). Mr. Donovan responds. Ms. Lefeber replies. CAV. Ms. Lefeber address the court
regarding defendant's motion to sever (Doc. #16). Mr. Donovan responds. The court
permits the government to file a reply brief in 10 days. CAV. Court Reporter J CRUZ.(ap,
) (Entered: 05/10/2017)

05/09/2017 36  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE GOVERNMENT SHALL FILE AND
SERVE ON OR BEFORE 5/19/17 A SUR-REPLY IN OPPOSITION TO THE MOTION
OF DEFENDANT DAVID T. SHULICK TO SEVER COUNTS; DEFENDANT SHALL
FILE AND SERVE ON OR BEFORE 5/26/2017 A RESPONSE TO THE SURREPLY.
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 5/9/2017.5/10/2017 Entered and
Copies E-Mailed. (ap, ) (Entered: 05/10/2017)

05/10/2017   ***Set/Reset Deadlines re Motion or Report and Recommendation in case as to DAVID
T. SHULICK 16 MOTION to Sever , 15 MOTION to Dismiss . RESPONSES DUE BY
5/26/2017. REPLIES DUE BY 5/19/2017. (ap, ) (Entered: 05/10/2017)

05/17/2017 37  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III:
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/17/2017.Court Reporter
ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 05/17/2017)

05/19/2017 38  RESPONSE in Opposition as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 16 MOTION to Sever
Government's Sur-Reply filed by USA . CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN,
MICHAEL) Modified on 5/22/2017 (ap, ). (Entered: 05/19/2017)

05/23/2017 39  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION RE: MOTION TO DISMISS AS TO DAVID T.
SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 5/23/2017.5/23/2017
Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (tomg, ) (Entered: 05/23/2017)

05/23/2017 40  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT
THE DEFT'S MOTION TO DISMISS COUNT SEVEN OR COUNT EIGHT OF THE
INDICTMENT (DOC. #15) IS DENIED. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE,
III on 5/23/2017.5/23/2017 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (tomg, ) (Entered: 05/23/2017)

05/30/2017 41  REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 16 MOTION to Sever
Sur-Reply to Government Sur-Reply (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 05/30/2017)

06/05/2017 42  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK REGARDING
MOTION TO SEVER COUNTS SEVEN AND EIGHT OF THE INDICTMENT. Signed
by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/5/17.6/5/17 Entered and Copies E-
Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 06/05/2017)

06/05/2017 43  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION ORDER THAT THE MOTION OF
DEFENDANT TO SEVER FOR TRIAL COUNTS 7 AND 8 FROM COUNTS 1
THROUGH 6 OF THE INDICTMENT (DOC #16) IS DENIED AS TO DAVID T.

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116229607
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116099256
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https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153016099221
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SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/5/17.6/5/17 Entered
and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 06/05/2017)

06/06/2017 44  ORDER THAT THE DEFENDANTS 17 MOTION TO "SUPPLEMENT MOTIONS
UPON RECEIPT OF MATERIAL PURUSUANT TO DISCOVERY AND REVIEW OF
EXISTING DISCOVERY" IS DENIED WITHOUT PREDJUDICE as to DAVID T.
SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/6/17.6/6/17
ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 06/06/2017)

06/06/2017 45  ORDER THAT THE DEFENDANTS 18 MOTION TO COMPEL DISCOVERY AND
PRODUCTION OF EXCULPATORY EVIDENCE IS DENIED AS MOOT as to DAVID
T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/6/17.6/6/17
ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 06/06/2017)

07/13/2017 46  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III:
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 7/13/2017.(eibo, ) (Entered:
07/13/2017)

07/13/2017 47  ORDER TO CONTINUE - ENDS OF JUSTICE PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION
3161(h)(7)(A)(B) AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE COURT FINDS THAT THE
ABOVE ACTION CANNOT PROCEED TO TRIAL AND DISPOSITION AND MUST
BE CONTINUED BECAUSE COUNSEL NEEDS ADDITIONAL TIME TO PREPARE.
THE COURT FINDS THAT THE ENDS OF JUSTICE SERVED BY GRANTING THIS
CONTINUANCE OUTWEIGH THE BEST INTEREST OF THE PUBLIC AND THE
DEFENDANT IN A SPEEDING TRIAL AND, THEREFORE, ORDERS THIS CASE
CONTINUED TO OCTOBER 2, 2017. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE,
III on 7/13/17.7/13/17 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 07/13/2017)

07/14/2017 48  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III:
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 7/14/2017.Court Reporter
ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 49  Letter from Defense Counsel as to DAVID T. SHULICK dated 7/12/17 re: Request for
Continuance. (eibo, ) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 50  Letter from the Government as to DAVID T. SHULICK re: Response to Defense Letter
(eibo, ) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 51  ORDER THAT THE REQUEST OF DEFENDANT FOR A CONTINUANCE OF THE
TRIAL IS GRANTED. THE TRIAL WILL BEGIN ON OCTOBER 2, 2017 AND THE
GOVERNMENT (BUT NOT THE DEFENDANT) IS BARRED FROM
INTRODUCING OR OTHERWISE USING AT TRIAL ANY DOCUMENTS THE
GOVERMENT DID NOT PRODUCE TO DEFENDANT BY JUNE 1, 2017 AS TO
DAVID T. SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
7/14/17.7/14/17 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 52  FIFTH SCHEDULING ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE FOURTH
SCHEDULING ORDER (DOC# 27) IS VACATED, ETC. THE COURT WILL HOLD A
FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE IN CHAMBERS AT 9:30 ON MONDAY,
OCTOBER 2, 2017. TRIAL WILL COMMENCE WITH JURY SELECTION AT 10:00
AM ON OCTOBER 2, 2017 IN COURTROOM 16A BEFORE HONORABLE HARVEY
BARTLE III. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 7/14/17.7/14/17
Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/20/2017 53  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE ABOVE-CAPTIONED CASE IS
SPECIALLY LISTED FOR TRIAL TO COMMENCE ON OCTOBER 2, 2017 AT 10:00
A.M. IN COURTROOM 16A, U.S. COURTHOUSE, 601 MARKET STREET,
PHILADELPHIA, PA. TRIAL IS EXPECTED TO LAST 4 WEEKS. Signed by
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HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 7/19/2017. 7/20/2017 Entered and Copies E-
Mailed. (ems) (Entered: 07/20/2017)

08/14/2017 54  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE ANN CAMPBELL FLANNERY appearing
for DAVID T. SHULICK (FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered: 08/14/2017)

08/24/2017 55  MOTION to Compel by DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered:
08/24/2017)

08/24/2017 56  MEMORANDUM OF LAW in Support of 55 MOTION to Compel by DAVID T.
SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 8/24/2017 (afm, ). (Entered: 08/24/2017)

08/27/2017 57  RESPONSE to Motion by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 55 MOTION to Compel ,
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on 8/28/2017 (afm, ).
(Entered: 08/27/2017)

08/28/2017 58  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE CHRISTOPHER JOHN MANNION
appearing for USA. (MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 08/28/2017)

09/13/2017 59  Letter RE: Status Report as to DAVID T. SHULICK. (eibo, ) (Entered: 09/13/2017)

09/14/2017 60  SIXTH SCHEDULING ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE FIFTH
SCHEDULING ORDER (DOC #52) IS VACATED, ETC. COUNSEL ARE NOW
NOTIFIED, FOR PLANNING PURPOSES, THAT THE TRIAL WILL TENTATIVELY
BE SCHEDULED TO BEGIN ON FEBRUARY 28, 2018 AT 10 AM IF THE COURT
DENIES THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS THE INDICTMENT. IF THE
COURT DENIES THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS THE INDICTMENT,
THE COURT AT THAT TIME WILL EITHER CONFIRM OR MODIFY THE TRIAL
DATE WITH SPECIFIC FINDINGS AS REQUIRED UNDER 18:3161. Signed by
HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 9/14/17.9/15/17 Entered and Copies E-
Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 09/15/2017)

09/18/2017 61  Declaration of Documents Produced by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE
OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on 9/19/2017 (afm, ). (Entered:
09/18/2017)

09/20/2017 62  NOTICE of Objection to Trial Date by DAVID T. SHULICK (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit
Exhibit A)(FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered: 09/20/2017)

09/27/2017 63  MOTION to Dismiss Indictment on Speedy Trial by DAVID T. SHULICK,
MEMORANDUM AND CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (Attachments: # 1 Memorandum,
# 2 Exhibit 2, # 3 Exhibit 7, # 4 Exhibit 10)(LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 9/28/2017
(afm, ). (Entered: 09/27/2017)

09/28/2017 64  ORDER THAT THE 55 MOTION TO COMPEL DISCOVER IS DENIED as to DAVID
T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 9/28/17.9/28/17
ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 09/28/2017)

09/29/2017 65  ORDER THAT COUNSEL CONFER AND MAKE A GOOD FAITH EFFORT TO
STIPULATE TO THE RELEVANT FACTS WHICH ARE UNDISPUTED SO AS TO
EXPEDITE THE HEARING SCHEDULED FOR OCTOBER 17, 2017 AS TO DAVID
T. SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 9/28/17.9/29/17
Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 09/29/2017)

10/02/2017 66  SEALED EXHIBITS by DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL) (ems) (ems).
(Main Document 66 replaced on 10/3/2017) (eibo, ). (Entered: 10/02/2017)

10/02/2017 67  SEALED MOTION WITH CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE by DAVID T. SHULICK.
(FILED UNDER SEAL) (ems) (ems). (Entered: 10/02/2017)
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10/03/2017 68  SEALED ORDER RE: 67 MOTION as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1). (FILED UNDER
SEAL) Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 10/3/17.10/3/17 ENTERED
AND COPIES MAILED.(eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 10/03/2017)

10/04/2017 69  RESPONSE to Motion by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 63 MOTION to Dismiss on
Speedy Trial, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on
10/5/2017 (afm, ). (Entered: 10/04/2017)

10/12/2017 70  MOTION to Compel by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit B, # 3 Exhibit C)(DONOVAN, MICHAEL)
Modified on 10/13/2017 (ke, ). (Entered: 10/12/2017)

10/13/2017 71  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III:
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/13/2017.Court Reporter
ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/16/2017)

10/13/2017 72  ORDER THAT THE 70 MOTION OF THE GOVERNMENT TO COMPEL IS DENIED
as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
10/13/17.10/16/17 ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/16/2017)

10/16/2017 73  MOTION to Quash Subpoena by DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered:
10/16/2017)

10/16/2017 74  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE FRANK R. COSTELLO appearing for USA.
(COSTELLO, FRANK) (Entered: 10/16/2017)

10/16/2017 75  ORDER THAT THE 73 MOTION TO QUASH SUBPOENA IS GRANTED as to
DAVID T. SHULICK (1). THE SUBPOENA IS QUASHED WITHOUT PREJUDICE.
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 10/16/17.10/16/17 ENTERED
AND COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/16/2017)

10/16/2017 76  MEMORANDUM CONCERNING HEARING ON MOTION TO DISMISS by DAVID
T. SHULICK. Certificate of Service. (FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 10/17/2017 (ap, ).
(Entered: 10/16/2017)

10/16/2017 77  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III:
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/16/2017.Court Reporter
ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/16/2017)

10/18/2017 78  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16A: Motions Hearing as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/17/2017.
Defense witnesses called and sworn. Court Reporter: ESR. (ems) (Entered: 10/18/2017)

10/20/2017 79  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16A: Evidentiary Hearing as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/19/17.
Parties address the Court. Witnesses are called by Defense and sworn by Court.
Following exhibits identified. Court adjourned. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Main
Document 79 replaced on 10/20/2017) (eibo, ). (Entered: 10/20/2017)

10/20/2017   ***Terminate Deadlines and Hearings as to DAVID T. SHULICK: (eibo, ) (Entered:
10/20/2017)

10/24/2017 80  BENCH MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK, Certificate of Service.
(FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 10/25/2017 (afm, ). (Entered: 10/24/2017)

10/24/2017 81  Memorandum Regarding Burden of Proof by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK ,
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on 10/25/2017 (afm,
). (Entered: 10/24/2017)
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10/25/2017 82  Response by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK Bench Memorandum 80 , CERTIFICATE
OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on 10/26/2017 (afm, ). (Entered:
10/25/2017)

10/25/2017 83  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Evidentiary Hearing/Motion as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on
10/18/17. Defense witnesses called and sworn, continuation of testimoney. Court
Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/25/2017)

10/25/2017 84  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Evidentiary Hearing/Motion as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on
10/20/17. Government witnesses called and sworn. Defense exhibits admitted.
Government exhibits admitted. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/25/2017)

10/26/2017 85  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-B:Evidentiary Hearing/Motion as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on
10/26/17. Arguments heard. CAVCourt Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/26/2017)

10/27/2017 86  TRANSCRIPT of MOTION HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on OCTOBER
17, 2017, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED: TK
TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE (eibo, ) (Entered: 10/27/2017)

10/27/2017 87  TRANSCRIPT of MOTION HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on OCTOBER
18, 2017, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED: TK
TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE(eibo, ) (Entered: 10/27/2017)

10/27/2017 88  TRANSCRIPT of MOTION HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on OCTOBER
19, 2017, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED: UBIQUS
REPORTING (eibo, ) (Entered: 10/27/2017)

10/27/2017 89  TRANSCRIPT of MOTION HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on OCTOBER
20, 2017, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED: UBIQUS
REPORTING (eibo, ) (Entered: 10/27/2017)

10/27/2017 90  Letter re: Oral Argument/Speedy Trial Delay as to DAVID T. SHULICK (eibo, )
(Entered: 10/27/2017)

11/08/2017 91  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III:
Telephone Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 8/23/2017. This conference
was not on the record. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) Modified on 11/9/2017 (ke, ).
(Entered: 11/08/2017)

11/08/2017 92  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 8/28/17. This conference was not on the
record. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 11/08/2017)

11/14/2017 93  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK RE:
DEFENDANTS MOTION TO DISMISS THE INDICTMENT. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 11/14/17.11/14/17 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, )
(Main Document 93 replaced on 11/16/2017) (ke, ). (Entered: 11/14/2017)

11/14/2017 94  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE MOTION OF THE DEFENDANT TO
DISMISS THE INDICTMENT (DOC #63) IS DENIED. THE TRIAL IN THIS ACTION
IS CONTINUED UNTIL APRIL 11, 2018 AT 10:00 AM, ETC. THE SIXTH
SCHEDULING ORDER (DOC #60) IS VACATED. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY
BARTLE, III on 11/14/17.11/14/17 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered:
11/14/2017)

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116671795
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116670267
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116672475
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116672504
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116676182
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116681402
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116707158
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116707177
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116715449
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153116715476


11/14/2017   ***Set/Reset Hearings as to DAVID T. SHULICK: JURY TRIAL SET FOR 4/11/2018
10:00 AM BEFORE HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE III. (eibo, ) (Entered:
11/14/2017)

11/15/2017 95  SEVENTH SCHEDULING ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK JURY TRIAL SET
FOR APRIL 11, 2018 10:00 AM IN COURTROOM 16A BEFORE HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE III. MOTION IN LIMINE DUE BY MARCH 29, 2018,
RESPONSES BY APRIL 6, 2018. PRETRIAL CONFERENCE SET FOR APRIL 11,
2018 9:15 AM IN JUDGE CHAMBERS. EACH PARTY SHALL FILE AND ASERVE
PROPOSED POINTS FOR CHARGE AND ANY PROPOSED SPECIAL JURY
INTERROGATORIES AS FOLLOWS: GOVERNMENT-ON OR BEFORE MARCH 29,
2018 AND DEFENDANT-ON OR BEFORE APRIL 6, 2018. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 11/15/17.11/15/17 Entered and Copies Mailed, E-Mailed and
Faxed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 11/15/2017)

11/15/2017   ***Set/Reset Deadlines re Motion or Report and Recommendation in case as to DAVID
T. SHULICK ( RESPONSES DUE BY 4/6/2018.) (eibo, ) (Entered: 11/15/2017)

11/16/2017 96  ORDER THAT THE FOLLOWING CLERICAL CORRECTIONS ARE MADE NUNC
PRO TUNC TO THE COURT'S MEMORANDUM DATED NOVEMBER 14, 2017
(DOC #93): 1-THE WORD "INDICATED" IS DELETED AND THE WORD
"INDICTED" IS INSERTED ON PAGE 1, LINE 8 AND; 2-THE WORD "ON" IS
INSERTED AFTER THE WORD "BASED" ON PAGE 3, LINE 14 AS TO DAVID T.
SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 11/16/17.11/16/17
Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 11/16/2017)

11/29/2017 97  ORDER THAT THE ABOVE-CAPTIONED CASE IS SPECIALLY LISTED FOR
TRIAL TO COMMENCE ON APRIL 11, 2018 AT 10:00 AM IN COURTROOM 16-A
AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK. TRIAL IS EXPECTED TO LAST 4 WEEKS. Signed by
HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 11/29/17.11/29/17 Entered and Copies E-
Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 11/29/2017)

11/30/2017 98  Defendant's Second Objection to Trial Date by DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF
SERVICE. (FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 11/30/2017 (afm, ). (Entered: 11/30/2017)

02/05/2018 99  MOTION to Preclude Use of Evidence Produced After June 1, 2017 by DAVID T.
SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 02/05/2018)

02/09/2018 100  RESPONSE to Motion by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 99 MOTION to Preclude
Use of Evidence Produced After June 1, 2017 filed by USA (DONOVAN, MICHAEL)
(Entered: 02/09/2018)

02/12/2018 101  REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 99 MOTION to Preclude
Use of Evidence Produced After June 1, 2017 (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 02/12/2018)

02/16/2018 102  ORDER THAT THE DEFENDANT'S 99 MOTION TO PRECLUDE USE OF
EVIDENCE PRODUCED AFTER JUNE 1, 2017 IS DENIED AND THE RENEWED
MOTION OF DEFENDANT TO DISMISS THE INDICTMENT (DOC #101) IS
DENIED as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE,
III on 2/16/18.2/16/18 ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered:
02/16/2018)

03/09/2018 103  MOTION to Continue Trial Date by DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE)
(Entered: 03/09/2018)

03/12/2018 104  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III: Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 3/8/2018. (ems) (Entered: 03/12/2018)
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03/12/2018 105  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE UNOPPOSED MOTION FOR
CONTINUANCE OF THE TRIAL IS GRANTED DUE TO THE PHYSICAL INJURY
AND SURGERY OF DEFENDANT'S COUNSEL AND THE TRIAL SHALL
COMMENCE ON MONDAY, APRIL 16, 2018 AT 10:00 A.M. IN COURTROOM 16A.
COUNSEL SHALL APPEAR IN CHAMBERS AT 9:30 A.M.. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 3/12/2018. 3/12/2018 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ems)
(Entered: 03/12/2018)

03/20/2018 106  MOTION to Exclude Evidence of Uncharged Conduct and Inappropriate Character Trait
Evidence by DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit B, # 3 Exhibit C)(FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 3/22/2018
(afm, ). (Entered: 03/20/2018)

03/28/2018 107  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III :
Status Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 3/28/18. Conference not on the
record.(eibo, ) (Entered: 03/28/2018)

03/29/2018 108  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III: Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 3/27/18. This conference was not on the
record.(eibo, ) (Entered: 03/29/2018)

03/29/2018 109  Memorandum (Supplemental) in Support re 106 MOTION to Exclude Evidence of
Uncharged Conduct and Inappropriate Character Trait Evidence as to DAVID T.
SHULICK , CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit D, # 2 Exhibit E)
(FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 3/30/2018 (ke, ). (Entered: 03/29/2018)

03/29/2018 110  Proposed Jury Instructions by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK (CERTIFICATE OF
SERVICE)(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 03/29/2018)

03/29/2018 111  MOTION in Limine (CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE) by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK.
(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 03/29/2018)

03/29/2018 112  MOTION in Limine (Consolidated), MOTION to Admit, MOTION to Exclude, MOTION
to Permit by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE.
(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER). Modified on 3/30/2018 (ke, ). (Entered: 03/29/2018)

03/30/2018 113  SEALED MOTION by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE.
(FILED UNDER SEAL) (eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/02/2018)

03/30/2018 114  SEALED MOTIONby USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE.
(FILED UNDER SEAL) (eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/02/2018)

04/03/2018 115  MOTION to Dismiss Counts Three, Four, Five, and Six from the Indictment by USA as to
DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL)
Modified on 4/4/2018 (ke, ). (Entered: 04/03/2018)

04/03/2018 116  MOTION in Limine to Limit Testimony of Revenue Agent, to Give Contemporaneous
Limiting Instruction, and to Require Advance Production of Expected Tax Calculations by
DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A)
(FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 4/4/2018 (ke, ). (Entered: 04/03/2018)

04/03/2018 117  MOTION for Reconsideration of Motion to Dismiss Indictment by DAVID T. SHULICK,
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit B1, # 3 Exhibit
B2, # 4 Exhibit B3, # 5 Exhibit B4, # 6 Exhibit C, # 7 Exhibit D, # 8 Exhibit E)
(LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 4/4/2018 (ke, ). (Entered: 04/03/2018)

04/03/2018 118  ORDER THAT THE 115 MOTION TO DISMISS COUNTS THREE, FOUR, FIVE AND
SIX FROM THE INDICTMENT IS GRANTED as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed
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by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 4/3/18.4/3/18 ENTERED AND COPIES
E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 04/03/2018)

04/03/2018 119  SEALED ORDER RE: 114 SEALED MOTION as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1). (FILED
UNDER SEAL) Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 4/3/18.4/3/18
ENTERED AND COPIES MAILED.(eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/03/2018)

04/03/2018 120  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK(Certificate of Service)
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A)(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 04/03/2018)

04/04/2018 121  RESPONSE in Opposition re 106 MOTION to Exclude Evidence of Uncharged Conduct
and Inappropriate Character Trait Evidence filed by USA , CERTIFICATE OF
SERVICE. (MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) Modified on 4/4/2018 (ke, ). (Entered:
04/04/2018)

04/04/2018 122  MOTION to Dismiss Counts 1 & 2, MOTION to Produce Grand Jury Transcripts by
DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 04/04/2018)

04/04/2018 123  MOTION to Exclude by DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered:
04/04/2018)

04/04/2018 124  REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 106 MOTION to Exclude
Evidence of Uncharged Conduct and Inappropriate Character Trait Evidence
(*CORRECTED - SEE DOC # 125 ) (FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 4/5/2018 (ap, ).
(Entered: 04/04/2018)

04/04/2018 125  AMENDED REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 106
MOTION to Exclude Evidence of Uncharged Conduct and Inappropriate Character Trait
Evidence CORRECTED - TO REPLACE DE 124 (FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on
4/5/2018 (ap, ). (Entered: 04/04/2018)

04/04/2018 126  RESPONSE in Opposition as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 122 MOTION to Dismiss
Counts 1 & 2 MOTION to Produce Grand Jury Transcripts filed by USA .
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on 4/5/2018 (ap, ).
(Entered: 04/04/2018)

04/05/2018 127  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III: Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/5/18. Conference was not on the record.
(eibo, ) (Entered: 04/05/2018)

04/06/2018 128  RESPONSE in Opposition as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 112 MOTION in Limine
(Consolidated) MOTION to Admit MOTION to Exclude MOTION to Permit .
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 4/10/2018 (ap, ).
(Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/06/2018 129  Memorandum re 106 MOTION to Exclude Evidence of Uncharged Conduct and
Inappropriate Character Trait Evidence as to DAVID T. SHULICK filed by USA
(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/06/2018 130  SEALED EX PARTE ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL)
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 4/6/18.4/6/18 Entered and Copies
Mailed. (eibo, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 4/6/2018: # 1 EXHIBIT, # 2
EXHIBIT) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/06/2018 131  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE PAUL L. GRAY appearing for USA. (GRAY,
PAUL) (Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/06/2018 132  ORDER THAT THE 122 MOTION TO DISMISS COUNTS 1 & 2, AND MOTION TO
PRODUCE GRAND JURY TRANSCRIPTS IS DENIED as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1).
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Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 4/6/18.4/6/18 ENTERED AND
COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/06/2018 133  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE ERIC L. GIBSON appearing for USA.
(GIBSON, ERIC) (Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/06/2018 134  MEMORANDUM in Opposition re 116 MOTION in Limine to Limit Testimony of
Revenue Agent, to Give Contemporaneous Limiting Instruction, and to Require Advance
Production of Expected Tax Calculations filed by USA (MANNION, CHRISTOPHER)
Modified on 4/9/2018 (ap, ). (Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/06/2018 135  Proposed Voir Dire by DAVID T. SHULICKCertificate of Service(FLANNERY, ANN)
(Entered: 04/06/2018)

04/09/2018 136  RESPONSE in Opposition AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK re 111 MOTION in Limine
(CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE) (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 4/10/2018 (ap, ).
(Entered: 04/09/2018)

04/10/2018 137  RESPONSE in Opposition as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 117 MOTION for
Reconsideration of Motion to Dismiss Indictment filed by USA . CERTIFICATE OF
SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on 4/11/2018 (ap, ). (Entered:
04/10/2018)

04/10/2018 138  RESPONSE in Opposition as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 123 MOTION to Exclude filed
by USA . CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on
4/11/2018 (ap, ). (Entered: 04/10/2018)

04/10/2018 139  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK Certificate of Service(FLANNERY,
ANN) (Entered: 04/10/2018)

04/10/2018 140  SEALED REPLY by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED UNDER SEAL)(eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/10/2018)

04/10/2018 141  SEALED MOTION by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE.
(FILED UNDER SEAL) (eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/10/2018)

04/11/2018 142  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK(LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered:
04/11/2018)

04/11/2018 143  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III: Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/10/18. Conference not on the record.
(eibo, ) (Entered: 04/11/2018)

04/12/2018 144  SEALED ORDER RE: 141 MOTION as to DAVID T. SHULICK (1). (FILED UNDER
SEAL) Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 4/11/18.4/12/18 ENTERED
AND COPIES MAILED.(eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/12/2018)

04/12/2018 145  Proposed Voir Dire by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK(Certificate of Service)
(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 04/12/2018)

04/13/2018 146  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK RE: MOTION
FOR RECONSIDERATION OF HIS MOTION TO DISMISS THE INDICTMENT.
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 4/13/18.4/13/18 Entered and
Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 04/13/2018)

04/13/2018 147  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE MOTION OF THE DEFENDANT
FOR RECONSIDERATION OF HIS MOTION TO DISMISS THE INDICTMENT IS
DENIED. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 4/13/18.4/13/18 Entered
and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 04/13/2018)
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04/13/2018 148  RESPONSE IN OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS BENCH MEMORANDUM IN
SUPPORT OF EVIDENCE SUPPORTING HIS DEFENSE by USA as to DAVID T.
SHULICK . (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) Modified on 4/16/2018 (ap, ). (Entered:
04/13/2018)

04/13/2018 149  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICKReply in Support of Defense
Evidence(FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered: 04/13/2018)

04/16/2018 150  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III:
Pretrial Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/16/2018.(tomg, ) (Entered:
04/16/2018)

04/17/2018 151  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: JURY TRIAL - DAY 1 held on 4/16/18 as to DAVID T. SHULICK.
Voir Dire. Jurors and alternates selected. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered:
04/17/2018)

04/17/2018 152  WAIVER of Presence of Court Stenographer or Electronic Sound Recording Operator
and Defendant(s) at Drawing of Jury Panel Members in Criminal Trials as to DAVID T.
SHULICK (eibo, ) (Entered: 04/17/2018)

04/18/2018 153  Minute Entry for proceeding s held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 2 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/17/18.
Defendant present and jury sworn. Opening statements and government witnesses sworn
and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 04/18/2018)

04/18/2018 154  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 3 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/18/18.
Defendant present. Government's case continues and witnesses sworn and testify. Court
Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 04/18/2018)

04/20/2018 155  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 4 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/19/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, )
(Entered: 04/20/2018)

04/20/2018 156  TRANSCRIPT of TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 17, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING (eibo, )
(pc). (Entered: 04/20/2018)

04/23/2018 157  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 5 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/20/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, )
(Entered: 04/23/2018)

04/24/2018 158  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 6 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/23/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, )
(Entered: 04/24/2018)

04/25/2018 159  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-AJury Trial - DAY 7 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/24/18. Court
Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 04/25/2018)

04/27/2018 160  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 8 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/26/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, )
(Main Document 160 replaced on 4/30/2018) (eibo, ). (Entered: 04/27/2018)
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04/30/2018 161  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 9 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/27/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, )
(Entered: 04/30/2018)

04/30/2018 162  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE CLERK OF COURT FOR THE EDPA
BE AND SHE IS HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH REFRESHMENTS FOR
JURORS ENGAGED IN THE ABOVE ENTITLED CASE AS FOLLOWS: APRIL 17-
20, 23, 24, 26, 27, 2018. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
4/30/18.4/30/18 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 04/30/2018)

04/30/2018 163  TRANSCRIPT of CRIMINAL JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL
20, 2018 before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: ASC SERVICES,
LLC (eibo, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 11/28/2022: # 1 Transcript) (pc).
(Entered: 04/30/2018)

04/30/2018 164  TRANSCRIPT of JURY HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 23, 2018
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: ASC SERVICES, LLC
(eibo, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 11/28/2022: # 1 Transcript) (pc). (Entered:
04/30/2018)

05/01/2018 165  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 10 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/30/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, )
(Entered: 05/01/2018)

05/02/2018 166  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK Concerning Evidence of Expenditure
of Funds for the Education of Students and Lack of Complaint by PSD(FLANNERY,
ANN) (Entered: 05/02/2018)

05/02/2018 167  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 11 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/1/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, )
(Entered: 05/02/2018)

05/02/2018 168  MOTION to Permit the Introduction of Defendant's Proffer Material by USA as to
DAVID T. SHULICK. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Proffer Letter)(GIBSON, ERIC)
(Entered: 05/02/2018)

05/03/2018 169  RESPONSE in Opposition as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 168 MOTION to Permit the
Introduction of Defendant's Proffer Material (FLANNERY, ANN) Modified on 5/7/2018
(ap, ). (Entered: 05/03/2018)

05/03/2018 170  TRANSCRIPT of TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 17, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING (eibo, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
05/03/2018)

05/03/2018 171  TRANSCRIPT of TRIAL WITNESS TESTIMONY as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on
APRIL 18, 2018 before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS
REPORTING (eibo, ) (pc). (Entered: 05/03/2018)

05/03/2018 172  TRANSCRIPT of TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 19, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING (eibo, )
(mac). (Entered: 05/03/2018)

05/03/2018 173  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 12 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/2/18.
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Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Counsel makes an oral motion
for mistrial, Government responds and Court denies the motion. Court Reporter ESR.
(eibo, ) (Entered: 05/03/2018)

05/04/2018 174  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 13 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/3/18.
Government's case continues, witnesses sworn and testify. Counsel makes an oral motion
for mistrial, Government responds and Court denies the motion. Government addresses
the court regarding the motion to permit the introduction of defendant's proffer material,
Counsel responds, CAV. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 05/04/2018)

05/06/2018 175  Proposed Jury Instructions by DAVID T. SHULICK(FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered:
05/06/2018)

05/06/2018 176  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK Regarding Impeachment Under Rule
806(FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered: 05/06/2018)

05/06/2018 177  Response by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK Regarding Dkt. No. 175 Proposed Jury
Instructions (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 05/06/2018)

05/06/2018 178  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK Defendant's Objection to Sending
Unredacted Indictment to the Jury (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit)(FLANNERY, ANN)
(Entered: 05/06/2018)

05/06/2018 179  Proposed Jury Instructions by DAVID T. SHULICK Defendant's Supplemental Proposed
Jury Instructions(FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered: 05/06/2018)

05/07/2018 180  TRIAL MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK Regarding Jury Instructions on 18
USC 666(FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered: 05/07/2018)

05/07/2018 181  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 14 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/4/18. Court
places ruling on the record regarding governments motion to permit the introduction of
defendant's proffer material (Doc # 168). Court colloquy, Government rests. Defendant's
case commences, witnesses sworn and testify and defendant rests. Charge conference
with counsel. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered: 05/07/2018)

05/07/2018 182  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE CLERK OF COURT FOR THE EDPA
BE AND SHE IS HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH MORNING AND AFTERNOON
REFRESHMENTS FOR JURORS ENGAGED IN THE ABOVE ENTITLED CASE AS
FOLLOWS: APRIL 30, MAY 1-4, 2018. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE,
III on 5/7/18.5/7/18 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 05/07/2018)

05/09/2018 183  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: Jury Trial - DAY 15 as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/7/18. Charge
Conference in chambers with counsel. Court's colloquy with defendant regarding his right
to testify or not to testify. Closing arguments. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered:
05/09/2018)

05/09/2018 184  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A: JURY VERDICT - DAY 16 held on 5/8/18 as to DAVID T. SHULICK
(1) Judge charge to Jury. Guilty on Counts 1,2,7,8,9-11. PSR Ordered. Sentencing set for
8/16/18 at 9:30 am. Conditions of release continue. Court Reporter ESR.(eibo, ) (Entered:
05/09/2018)

05/09/2018 185  Jury Verdict Sheet as to DAVID T. SHULICK.(eibo, ) (Entered: 05/09/2018)

05/16/2018 186  NOTICE OF HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK Sentencing set for 8/16/2018 09:30
AM in COURTROOM 16-A before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE III. (km, )

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117085818
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117087074
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117087077
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117087096
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017087099
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117087100
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117087120
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117087129
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117088621
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117089272
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117094582
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117094767
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117094778
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117109778


(Entered: 05/16/2018)

05/23/2018 187  ORDER THAT THE CLERK OF COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF
PENNSYLVANIA BE AND SHE IS HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH
REFRESHMENTS FOR JURORS ENGAGED IN THE ABOVE ENTITLED CASE AS
FOLLOWS: MAY 7, 2018, MORNING AND AFTERNOON REFRESHMENTS AND
MAY 8, 2018, MORING REFRESHMENTS AND LUNCH FOR 12 JURORS AND 4
ALTERNATES.. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 5/23/18.5/23/18
Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, ) (Entered: 05/23/2018)

05/30/2018 188  SEALED RESPONSE by DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL) (eibo, ) (eibo,
). (Entered: 05/30/2018)

05/30/2018 189  SEALED ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK RE 188 . (FILED UNDER SEAL)
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 5/30/18.5/30/18 Entered and
Copies Mailed. (eibo, ) (eibo, ). (Entered: 05/30/2018)

06/21/2018 190  MOTION to Withdraw as Attorney by Ann C. Flannery. by DAVID T. SHULICK.
(FLANNERY, ANN) (Entered: 06/21/2018)

06/25/2018 191  ORDER THAT THE 190 MOTION TO WITHDRAW AS ATTORNEY IS GRANTED as
to DAVID T. SHULICK (1). THE CLERK IS DIRECTED TO TERMINATE MS.
FLANNERY'S APPEARANCE AS COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT IN THIS CASE.
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/25/18.6/25/18 ENTERED AND
COPIES E-MAILED.(eibo, ) (Entered: 06/25/2018)

06/25/2018 192  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III. Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 6/25/18. This conference was not on the
record.(eibo, ) (Entered: 06/25/2018)

06/25/2018 193  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE CURRENT SENTENCING DATE OF
AUGUST 16, 2018 IS VACATED. THE SENTENCING HEARING SHALL TAKE
PLACE ON SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 AT 2:00 PM BEFORE HONORABLE HARVEY
BARTLE III. A HEARING ON THE ISSUE OF FINANCIAL LOSS SHALL TAKE
PLACE ON SEPTEMBER 11, 2018 AT 9:30 AM, ETC. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/25/18.6/25/18 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (eibo, )
(Entered: 06/25/2018)

06/25/2018 194  TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 24, 2018
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: ASC SERVICES, LLC
(eibo, ) (mac). (Entered: 06/25/2018)

06/25/2018 195  TRANSCRIPT of TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 26, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: ASC SERVICES, LLC (eibo, )
(tomg). (Entered: 06/25/2018)

06/25/2018 196  TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 27, 2018
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: ASC SERVICES, LLC
(eibo, ) (tomg). (Entered: 06/25/2018)

06/25/2018 197  TRANSCRIPT of JURY HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on MAY 7, 2018
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: ASC SERVICES, LLC
(eibo, ) (pc). (Entered: 06/25/2018)

06/25/2018 198  TRANSCRIPT of JURY HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on MAY 8, 2018
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: ASC SERVICES, LLC
(eibo, ) (pc). (Entered: 06/25/2018)

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117125016
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117137211
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117137234
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117137211
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117188588
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117194419
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117188588
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117194431
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117194455
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120529418
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120530489
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120530488
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834730
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834737


06/26/2018 199  NOTICE OF HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK Sentencing set for 9/26/2018 02:00
PM in COURTROOM 16-A before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE III. (km, )
(Entered: 06/26/2018)

08/06/2018 200  NOTICE OF HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK Hearing on the issue of financial loss
set for 9/14/2018 09:30 AM in COURTROOM before HONORABLE HARVEY
BARTLE III. (km, ) (Entered: 08/06/2018)

08/13/2018 201  Memorandum by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK Regarding Loss Calculation
(DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 08/13/2018)

08/17/2018 202  SENTENCING MEMORANDUM Certificate of Service by DAVID T. SHULICK
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit)(LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 08/17/2018)

08/23/2018 203  TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on APRIL 30, 2018
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING
(eibo, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc).
(Entered: 08/23/2018)

08/23/2018 204  TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on MAY 1, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING (eibo, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
08/23/2018)

08/23/2018 205  TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on MAY 2, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING (eibo, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
08/23/2018)

08/23/2018 206  TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on MAY 3, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING (eibo, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
08/23/2018)

08/23/2018 207  TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on MAY 4, 2018 before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. TRANSCRIBED BY: UBIQUS REPORTING (eibo, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
08/23/2018)

09/07/2018 208  Supplemental SENTENCING DOCUMENT CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE by USA as to
DAVID T. SHULICK (MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 09/07/2018)

09/11/2018 209  NOTICE OF HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK Hearing on financial loss set for
9/26/2018 10:30 AM in COURTROOM 16-A before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE
III. This proceeding is rescheduled from 9/14/2018.(km, ) (Entered: 09/11/2018)

09/17/2018 210  SENTENCING MEMORANDUM CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE by USA as to DAVID
T. SHULICK (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1, # 2 Exhibit 2, # 3 Exhibit 3, # 4 Exhibit 4, # 5
Exhibit 5, # 6 Exhibit 6, # 7 Exhibit 7, # 8 Exhibit 8, # 9 Exhibit 9, # 10 Exhibit 10, # 11
Exhibit 11, # 12 Exhibit 12)(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 09/17/2018)

09/19/2018 211  MOTION for Forfeiture of Property by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK. (DONOVAN,
MICHAEL) (Entered: 09/19/2018)

09/24/2018 212  Memorandum by DAVID T. SHULICK Response to Govt Suppl. Loss Memo (LEFEBER,
HOPE) (Entered: 09/24/2018)

09/24/2018 213  SENTENCING MEMORANDUM by DAVID T. SHULICK (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A,
# 2 Exhibit B, # 3 Exhibit C)(LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 09/24/2018)

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117198980
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117283027
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117302448
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017319939
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117319940
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834745
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834746
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834776
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834777
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834781
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834782
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834795
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834796
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834800
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834801
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117363862
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117368116
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017384091
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384092
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384093
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384094
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384095
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384096
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384097
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384098
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384099
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384100
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384101
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384102
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117384103
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117391285
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117399458
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017399802
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117399803
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117399804
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117399805


09/27/2018 214  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16-A RE: LOSS HEARING AND SENTENCING (DAY 1)held on 9/26/2018
for DAVID T. SHULICK. LOSS HEARING. DEFT PRESENT. USPO PRESENT.
COURT'S COLLOQUY WITH COUNSEL REGARDING THE GOVT'S LOSS
CALCULATIONS. COUNSEL ADDRESS THE COURT. WITNESS CALLED AND
SWORN. ARGUMENT ON LOSS WILL TAKE PLACE ON 9/27/2018. SENTENCING.
WITNESSES CALLED AND SWORN.Court Reporter J. CRUZ.(kk, ) (Entered:
09/27/2018)

09/28/2018 215  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 16A: LOSS HEARING AND SENTENCING (DAY 2) held on 9/27/2018 for
DAVID T. SHULICK (1), Count(s) 1, 2, 7, 8, IMPRISONMENT: 60 MONTHS;
SUPERVISED RELEASE: 3 YEARS; FINE: $20,000; RESTITUTION: $764,735;
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: $700; Count(s) 9-11, IMPRISONMENT: 20 MONTHS
CONSECUTIVELY; SUPERVISED RELEASE: 1 YEAR; FINE: $20,000;
RESTITUTION: $764,735; SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: $700. The Court advises the deft
of his right to appeal. Court Reporter: ESR.(tomg, ) (Entered: 09/28/2018)

10/03/2018 216  ORDER OF FORFEITURE AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 10/3/2018.10/3/2018 Entered and Copies E-Mailed AND CC
FBI. (tomg, ) (Main Document 216 replaced on 10/3/2018) (ke, ). (Entered: 10/03/2018)

10/03/2018 217  JUDGMENT AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1), Count(s) 1, 2, 7, 8, IMPRISONMENT: 60
MONTHS; SUPERVISED RELEASE: 3 YEARS; FINE: $20,000; RESTITUTION:
$764,735; SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: $700; Count(s) 3-6, DISMISSED ON
GOVERNMENT'S MOTION; Count(s) 9-11, IMPRISONMENT: 20 MONTHS
CONSECUTIVELY TO EACHOTHER BUT CONCURRENTLY TO COUNTS 1, 2, 7,
AND 8; SUPERVISED RELEASE: 1 YEAR; FINE: $20,000; RESTITUTION:
$764,735; SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: $700. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY
BARTLE, III on 10/3/2018.10/3/2018 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (tomg, ) (Entered:
10/03/2018)

10/12/2018 218  MEMORANDUM OF LAW in Support of Motion for Release Pending Appeal by
DAVID T. SHULICK. CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE. (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on
10/15/2018 (ap, ). (Entered: 10/12/2018)

10/15/2018 219  TRANSCRIPT of SENTENCING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 9/26/2018, before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: UBIQUS REPORTING, INC. (tomg, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
10/15/2018)

10/15/2018 220  TRANSCRIPT of LOSS HEARING AND SENTENCING (DAY 2) as to DAVID T.
SHULICK held on 9/27/2018, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by:
UBIQUS REPORTING, INC. (tomg, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1
TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered: 10/15/2018)

10/15/2018 221  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III: Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/15/2018.(tomg, ) (Entered:
10/16/2018)

10/16/2018 222  NOTICE OF APPEAL by DAVID T. SHULICK RE: 217 JUDGMENT, CERTIFICATE
OF SERVICE. (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 10/16/2018 (ke, ). Modified on
10/16/2018 (ke, ). (Entered: 10/16/2018)

10/17/2018 223  RESPONSE to Motion by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 218 MOTION for Bail
Peding Appeal filed by USA (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered: 10/17/2018)

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117411037
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117414057
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117422500
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117422625
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117444688
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834805
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834806
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834855
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834858
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117448447
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117449547
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117422625
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117452978
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117444688


10/18/2018 224  NOTICE of Docketing Record on Appeal from USCA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 222
Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment filed by DAVID T. SHULICK. USCA Case Number
18-3305. (tomg, ) (Entered: 10/18/2018)

10/19/2018 225  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK RE: MOTION
FOR RELEASE ON BAIL PENDING APPEAL 218 . Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 10/19/2018.10/19/2018 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (kk, )
(Entered: 10/19/2018)

10/19/2018 226  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE MOTION FOR RELEASE ON BAIL
PENDING APPEAL 218 IS DENIED. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III
on 10/19/2018.10/19/2018 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (kk, ) (Entered: 10/19/2018)

10/19/2018   USCA Appeal Fees received $ 505, receipt number PPE186592 as to DAVID T.
SHULICK re 222 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment : (tomg, ) (Entered: 10/22/2018)

10/23/2018 227  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE DEFT SHALL SELF-SURRENDER
ON 10/31/2018. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
10/23/2018.10/24/2018 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (tomg, ) (Entered: 10/24/2018)

10/29/2018 228  MOTION to Supplement Sentencing Record by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK.
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered:
10/29/2018)

10/29/2018 229  MOTION to Compel Compliance With Court Order by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK.
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered:
10/29/2018)

11/21/2018 230  ORDER of USCA (certified copy) as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 222 Notice of Appeal -
Final Judgment. IT IS ORDERED THAT THE FOREGOING MOTION BY
APPELLANT FOR BAIL PENDING APPEAL IS DENIED. (ke, ) (Entered: 11/21/2018)

12/03/2018 231  Copy of TPO Form re 222 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment : (kk, ) (Entered:
12/04/2018)

12/07/2018 232  RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 228 MOTION to Supplement
Sentencing Record (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered: 12/07/2018)

12/07/2018 233  RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 229 MOTION to Compel Compliance
With Court Order (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A)(LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered:
12/07/2018)

12/17/2018 234  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK Signed by
HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 12/17/18.12/17/18 Entered and Copies E-
Mailed. (ti, ) (Entered: 12/17/2018)

12/17/2018 235  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE MOTION OF THE GOVERNMENT
TO SUPPLEMENT THE RECORD 228 IS GRANTED; THE MOTION OF THE
GOVERNMENT TO COMPEL 229 IS GRANTED; AND DEFENSE COUNSEL
SHALL COMPLY WITH THIS ORDER FORTHWITH. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 12/17/18.12/17/18 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (ti, )
(Entered: 12/17/2018)

12/24/2018 236  MOTION for Reconsideration by DAVID T. SHULICK. (LEFEBER, HOPE) (Entered:
12/24/2018)

12/27/2018 237  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1) THAT THE MOTION OF DEFENDANT FOR
RECONSIDERATION OF THIS COURT'S ORDER DATED DECEMBER 17, 2018
(DOC. NO. 236) IS DENIED. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117457598
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117449547
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117459396
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117444688
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117459399
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117444688
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117449547
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117468104
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017478083
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117478084
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017478090
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117478091
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117534997
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117449547
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117558765
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117449547
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117569561
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017478083
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017569612
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017478090
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117569613
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117590506
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117590701
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017478083
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153017478090
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117607969
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117611658


12/27/2018. 12/27/2018 ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED. (ems) (Entered:
12/27/2018)

12/28/2018 238  NOTICE OF APPEAL by DAVID T. SHULICK re 235 Order (Memorandum and/or
Opinion), 234 Memorandum and/or Opinion, 237 Order on Motion for Reconsideration,
Certificate of Service. (LEFEBER, HOPE) Modified on 12/28/2018 (ke, ). (Entered:
12/28/2018)

01/04/2019 239  NOTICE of Docketing Record on Appeal from USCA as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 238
Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment filed by DAVID T. SHULICK. USCA Case Number
19-1011 (ke, ) (Entered: 01/04/2019)

01/08/2019   USCA Appeal Fees received $ 505, receipt number PPE198615 as to DAVID T.
SHULICK re 238 Notice of Appeal - Final Judgment. (tomg, ) (Entered: 01/08/2019)

01/09/2019 240  AMENDED TRANSCRIPT OF CRIMINAL JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK
held on 4/20/2018, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: ASC
SERVICES, LLC. (tomg, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1
TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered: 01/09/2019)

01/09/2019 241  AMENDED TRANSCRIPT OF JURY HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on
4/23/2018, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: ASC SERVICES, LLC.
(tomg, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc).
(Entered: 01/09/2019)

01/09/2019 242  AMENDED TRANSCRIPT OF CRIMINAL JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK
held on 4/24/2018, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: ASC
SERVICES, LLC. (tomg, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1
TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered: 01/09/2019)

01/09/2019 243  AMENDED TRANSCRIPT OF TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/26/2018,
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: ASC SERVICES, LLC. (tomg, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/6/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
01/09/2019)

02/26/2019 244  TRANSCRIPT of ORAL ARGUMENT as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 5/9/2017,
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: TK TRANSCRIBERS. (tomg, )
(pc). (Entered: 02/26/2019)

02/26/2019 245  TRANSCRIPT of MOTION HEARING as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/26/2017,
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: TK TRANSCRIBERS. (tomg, )
(pc). (Entered: 02/26/2019)

02/26/2019 246  TRANSCRIPT of JURY SELECTION as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/16/2018,
before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: TK TRANSCRIBERS. (tomg, )
(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/7/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
02/26/2019)

02/26/2019 247  TRANSCRIPT of COLLOQUY as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 4/16/2018, before
Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: TK TRANSCRIBERS. (tomg, ) (pc).
(Entered: 02/26/2019)

03/20/2019 248  AMENDED TRANSCRIPT of TRIAL WITNESS TESTIMONY as to DAVID T.
SHULICK held on 4/18/2018, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by:
UBIQUS. (tomg, ) (pc). (Entered: 03/20/2019)

03/20/2019 249  AMENDED TRANSCRIPT of JURY TRIAL as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on
5/2/2018, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III. Transcribed by: UBIQUS. (tomg, )

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117614036
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117590701
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117590506
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117611658
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117624244
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117614036
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117614036
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834868
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834869
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834873
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834874
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834898
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834899
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020834912
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120834913
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120837510
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120837541
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020837642
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120837643
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120837666
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120837681
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020837708


(Additional attachment(s) added on 12/7/2022: # 1 TRANSCRIPT) (pc). (Entered:
03/20/2019)

08/23/2019 250  Consent MOTION to Settle and Approve Statement of Proceedings Pursuant to
Fed.R.App.P. 10(c) by DAVID T. SHULICK. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A - Statement of
Proceedings, # 2 Text of Proposed Order)(MATHEWSON, LISA) (Entered: 08/23/2019)

08/27/2019 251  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1) THAT THE CONSENT MOTION TO
SETTLE AND APPROVE STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS IS GRANTED. THE
STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT "A" TO THE MOTION,
WITH TRANSCRIPTS ATTACHED AS EXHIBITS 1-4, IS SETTLED AND
APPROVED PURSUANT TO FED.R.APP.P.10(c). Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY
BARTLE, III on 8/27/2019.8/27/2019 ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(tomg, )
(Entered: 08/27/2019)

08/27/2019   COPY OF THE STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS SENT TO USCA PER CHAMBERS
AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (tomg, ) (Entered: 08/27/2019)

11/18/2019 252  SEALED PRO SE MOTION by DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL) (ems)
(ems). (Entered: 11/18/2019)

01/09/2020 253  SEALED ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 1/9/2020. (FILED UNDER SEAL).1/9/2020 ENTERED AND
COPIES MAILED.(tomg, ) (tomg, ). (Entered: 01/09/2020)

05/15/2020 254  (PRO SE) EMERGENCY MOTION FOR COMPASSIONATE RELEASE by DAVID T.
SHULICK. (Attachments: # 1 PART 2, # 2 PART 3)(tomg, ) (Entered: 05/15/2020)

05/21/2020 255  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE ANDREW D. SWAIN appearing for DAVID
T. SHULICK (SWAIN, ANDREW) (Entered: 05/21/2020)

05/22/2020 256  Consent MOTION to Seal Document by DAVID T. SHULICK. (SWAIN, ANDREW)
(Entered: 05/22/2020)

05/26/2020 257  SEALED RESPONSE filed by USA AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER
SEAL). (ahf) (Additional attachment(s) added on 5/26/2020: # 1 EXHIBIT A, # 2
EXHIBIT B) (ahf, ). (Entered: 05/26/2020)

05/26/2020 258  SEALED MOTION by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL) (ahf, )
(ahf, ). (Entered: 05/26/2020)

05/29/2020 259  REPLY TO RESPONSE to Motion by DAVID T. SHULICK re 258 MOTION to Seal
Document (FILED UNDER SEAL) (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibits A-C)(SWAIN,
ANDREW) (Entered: 05/29/2020)

05/29/2020 260  MOTION to Seal Document by DAVID T. SHULICK. (SWAIN, ANDREW) (Entered:
05/29/2020)

06/01/2020 261  RESPONSE in Support by DAVID T. SHULICK re 254 MOTION for Release from
Custody Referencing New Asthma Test June 1, 2020 (SWAIN, ANDREW) (Entered:
06/01/2020)

06/03/2020 262  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE COURT SETTLES AND APPROVES
THE STATEMENT ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT A CONCERNING WHAT
OCCURRED ON APRIL 24, 2018 AND MAY 7, 2018. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/3/2020. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A)6/3/2020 Entered and
Copies E-Mailed. (ahf) (Entered: 06/03/2020)

06/03/2020 263  SEALED ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/3/2020. (FILED UNDER SEAL).6/3/2020 ENTERED AND

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120837709
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153018182077
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118182078
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118182079
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118186491
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118382950
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118493289
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153018764335
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118764336
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118764337
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118774201
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118776532
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153018779532
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118779533
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118779534
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118779535
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153018788114
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118779535
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118788115
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118788170
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118791947
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153018764335
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153018797411
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118797412
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118797880


COPIES E-MAILED.(tomg, ) (tomg, ). (Entered: 06/03/2020)

06/03/2020 264  SEALED ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/3/2020. (FILED UNDER SEAL).6/3/2020 ENTERED AND
COPIES E-MAILED.(tomg, ) (tomg, ). (Entered: 06/03/2020)

06/03/2020 265  SEALED ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/3/2020. (FILED UNDER SEAL).6/3/2020 ENTERED AND
COPIES E-MAILED.(tomg, ) (tomg, ). (Entered: 06/03/2020)

06/09/2020 266  SEALED SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSE by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED
UNDER SEAL). (tomg, ) (Additional attachment(s) added on 6/9/2020: # 1 EXHIBIT)
(tomg, ). (Entered: 06/09/2020)

06/09/2020 267  SEALED MOTION by USA as to DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL).
(tomg, ) (tomg, ). (Entered: 06/09/2020)

06/09/2020 268  SEALED SUPPLEMENTAL MEDICAL RECORD BY DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED
UNDER SEAL). (tomg, ) (tomg, ). (Entered: 06/10/2020)

06/10/2020 269  SEALED REPLY by DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL). (tomg, ) (tomg, ).
(Entered: 06/10/2020)

06/12/2020 270  SEALED RESPONSE by DAVID T. SHULICK. (FILED UNDER SEAL)(ahf) (ahf, )
(Entered: 06/15/2020)

06/16/2020 271  SEALED ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK (1). Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/16/2020. (FILED UNDER SEAL).6/16/2020 ENTERED
AND COPIES E-MAILED.(tomg, ) (tomg, ). (Entered: 06/16/2020)

06/16/2020 272  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK. Signed by
HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/16/2020.6/16/2020 Entered and Copies E-
Mailed. (tomg, ) (Entered: 06/16/2020)

06/16/2020 273  MEMORANDUM AND/OR OPINION ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT
THE EMERGENCY MOTION FOR COMPASSIONATE RELEASE UNDER
18:3582(c)(1)(A) (DOC. #254) IS DISMISSED FOR LACK OF JURISDICTION.
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 6/16/2020.6/16/2020 Entered and
Copies E-Mailed. (tomg, ) (Entered: 06/16/2020)

06/29/2020 274  MOTION to Withdraw as Attorney by Andrew D. Swain, Esq.. by DAVID T. SHULICK.
(SWAIN, ANDREW) (Entered: 06/29/2020)

06/29/2020 275  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT COUNSEL'S LEAVE TO WITHDRAW AS
CO-COUNSEL FILED BY ANDREW D. SWAIN, ESQ. IS GRANTED. MR SWAIN
AND HIS FIRM ARE PERMITTED TO WITHDRAW AS COUNSEL OF RECORD
FOR DEFENDANT. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
6/29/2020.6/29/2020 ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(ahf) (Entered: 06/29/2020)

07/09/2020   Copies of Documents # 263-265, 271 mailed to counsel as to DAVID T. SHULICK (mac,
) (Entered: 07/09/2020)

10/07/2020   DOC. #272 AND #273 MAILED TO PRO SE DAVID T. SHULICK (tomg, ) (Entered:
10/07/2020)

01/27/2022 276  USCA JUDGMENT (certified copy) as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 222 Notice of Appeal
- Final Judgment that the Judgment of the District Court entered 10/3/18, be and the same
is hereby affirmed, etc. (mac, ) (Entered: 01/27/2022)

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118797894
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118797907
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153018807895
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118807896
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118807907
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118809334
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118811146
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118818366
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118823832
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118823836
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118823842
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118849690
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153118850647
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120149740
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117449547


01/27/2022 277  USCA JUDGMENT (certified copy) as to DAVID T. SHULICK re 238 Notice of Appeal
- Final Judgment that the judgment of the District Court entered 12/27/18, be and the
same is hereby affirmed, etc (mac, ) (Entered: 01/27/2022)

02/10/2022 278  PRO SE MOTION FOR RETURN OF PASSPORT FILED BY DAVID T. SHULICK.
(NO ENVELOPE ATTACHED) (Attachments: # 1 EMAIL)(mac, ) (Entered: 02/10/2022)

02/14/2022 279  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE CLERK OF THE USDC FOR THE
EDPA SHALL RETURN TO DEFENDANT HIS PASSPORT BY MAILING IT TO HIM
AT HIS HOME ADDRESS, ETC. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
2/14/22.2/14/22 ENTERED AND COPIES E-MAILED.(mac) (Entered: 02/14/2022)

03/22/2022 280  REQUEST AND ORDER FOR MODIFYING THE CONDITIONS OR TERM OF
SUPERVISION WITH THE CONSENT OF THE OFFENDER AS TO DAVID T.
SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 3/22/22.3/23/22
Entered and Copies Mailed and E-Mailed. (mac) (Entered: 03/23/2022)

05/24/2022 281  STIPULATION REGARDING RESTITUTION AS OUTLINED HEREIN AS TO
DAVID T. SHULICK. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on
5/17/22.5/24/22 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (mac) (Main Document 281 replaced on
6/9/2022) (ke). (Entered: 05/24/2022)

10/05/2022 282  NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE SAMUEL C. STRETTON appearing for
DAVID T. SHULICK (Attachments: # 1 Certificate of Service Certificate of Service)
(STRETTON, SAMUEL) (Entered: 10/05/2022)

10/05/2022 283  First MOTION to Vacate/Set Aside/Correct Sentence (2255) under 28 U.S.C. 2255 by
DAVID T. SHULICK. (CIVIL ACTION 22Ccv3990). (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibits
"A" and "B", # 2 Certificate of Service Certificate of Service)(STRETTON, SAMUEL)
Modified on 10/6/2022 (ke). (Entered: 10/05/2022)

10/19/2022 284  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III: Status
Conference as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 10/19/22.(mac) (Entered: 10/19/2022)

10/19/2022 285  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE GOVERNMENT SHALL FILE A
RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S 28:2255 BY NOVEMBER 21, 2022. DEFENDANT
SHALL REPLY IN SUPPORT OF HIS MOTION BY DECEMBER 21, 2022, ETC.
Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 10/19/22.10/19/22 Entered and
Copies E-Mailed. (mac) (Entered: 10/19/2022)

11/10/2022 286  First MOTION to Supplement the Habeas Corpus Petition by DAVID T. SHULICK.
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order Proposed Order, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit "A", # 3
Exhibit Exhibit "B", # 4 Certificate of Service Certificate of Service)(STRETTON,
SAMUEL) (Entered: 11/10/2022)

11/10/2022 287  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT DEFENDANT'S HABEAS CORPUS
PETITION UNDER 28:2255 IS ALLOWED RO BE SUPPLEMENTED BY GROUND
FOUR. Signed by HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 11/10/22.11/14/22 Entered
and Copies E-Mailed. (mac) (Entered: 11/14/2022)

11/21/2022 288  RESPONSE in Opposition re 283 First MOTION to Vacate/Set Aside/Correct Sentence
(2255) under 28 U.S.C. 2255 , 286 First MOTION to Supplement the Habeas Corpus
Petition filed by USA (MANNION, CHRISTOPHER) (Entered: 11/21/2022)

12/15/2022 289  First MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply as to 288 Response in
Opposition by DAVID T. SHULICK. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order Proposed
Order, # 2 Certificate of Service Certificate of Service)(STRETTON, SAMUEL)
(Entered: 12/15/2022)

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120149772
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153117614036
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020180656
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120180657
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120187598
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120268622
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120401621
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020695816
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120695817
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020695820
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120695821
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120695822
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120732002
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120732029
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020783553
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120783555
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120783556
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120783557
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120783558
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120786652
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120805551
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020695820
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020783553
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020858152
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120805551
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120858153
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120858154


12/15/2022 290  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT MR. STRETTON'S MOTION FOR
EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE A BRIEF IN RESPONSE IS GRANTED AND SAID
RESPONSE BRIEF SHALL BE DUE BY FRIDAY, DECEMBER 30, 2022. Signed by
HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III on 12/15/22.12/16/22 Entered and Copies E-
Mailed. (mac) (Entered: 12/16/2022)

12/29/2022 291  RESPONSE in Support by DAVID T. SHULICK re 283 First MOTION to Vacate/Set
Aside/Correct Sentence (2255) under 28 U.S.C. 2255 and in Opposition to the
Government's Brief to Dismiss (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit "A", # 2 Exhibit Exhibit
"B", # 3 Certificate of Service Certificate of Service)(STRETTON, SAMUEL) (Entered:
12/29/2022)

02/01/2023   ***Case Reopened as to DAVID T. SHULICK (mac) (Entered: 02/01/2023)

02/01/2023 292  ORDER AS TO DAVID T. SHULICK THAT THE COURT WILL HOLD ORAL
ARGUMENT ON DEFENDANT'S 28:2255 MOTION ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY
15, 2023 AT 10:00 A.M. ION COURTROOM 16A, ETC. Signed by HONORABLE
HARVEY BARTLE, III on 2/1/23.2/1/23 Entered and Copies E-Mailed. (mac) (Entered:
02/01/2023)

02/09/2023 293  NOTICE: Oral argument on the pending Motion of David Shulick 283 scheduled for
February 15, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. before the HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE III will
be heard in COURTROOM 15A (instead of 16A), etc. (nds) (Entered: 02/09/2023)

02/15/2023 294  Minute Entry for proceedings held before HONORABLE HARVEY BARTLE, III in
Courtroom 15: Motion Hearing as to DAVID T. SHULICK held on 2/15/23. Oral
argument. Additional briefing ordered.Court Reporter ESR.(mac) (Entered: 02/15/2023)

02/21/2023 295  RESPONSE in Support by DAVID T. SHULICK re 283 First MOTION to Vacate/Set
Aside/Correct Sentence (2255) under 28 U.S.C. 2255 and in Opposition to the
Government's Motion to Dismiss and in Support of Mr. Shulick's Request for a Hearing
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit "A", # 2 Certificate of Service Certificate of Service)
(STRETTON, SAMUEL) (Entered: 02/21/2023)

02/23/2023 296  NOTICE Withdrawal of Appearance of former AUSA Eric L. Gibson by USA as to
DAVID T. SHULICK (COSTELLO, FRANK) (Entered: 02/23/2023)

02/23/2023 297  NOTICE Withdrawal of Appearance of former AUSA Christopher J. Mannion by USA as
to DAVID T. SHULICK (COSTELLO, FRANK) (Entered: 02/23/2023)

02/23/2023 298  NOTICE Withdrawal of Appearance of former AUSA Paul L. Gray by USA as to DAVID
T. SHULICK (COSTELLO, FRANK) (Entered: 02/23/2023)

03/02/2023 299  First MOTION to Supplement Brief and Provide Affidavit of Frederick Hamilton by
DAVID T. SHULICK. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit "A", # 2 Exhibit Exhibit "B", #
3 Certificate of Service Certificate of Service)(STRETTON, SAMUEL) (Entered:
03/02/2023)

03/06/2023 300  RESPONSE in Opposition re 299 First MOTION to Supplement Brief and Provide
Affidavit of Frederick Hamilton filed by USA (DONOVAN, MICHAEL) (Entered:
03/07/2023)

03/07/2023 301  TRANSCRIPT: Oral Argument held on 2/15/23, before Judge HARVEY BARTLE, III.
Court Reporter/Transcriber ESR. Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal or
purchased through the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for Release of
Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER. Redaction
Request due 3/28/2023. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 4/7/2023. Release of

https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120859158
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020883003
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020695820
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120883004
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120883005
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120883006
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120955271
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153120974820
https://ecf.paed.uscourts.gov/doc1/153020695820
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 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
 FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 
 
IN THE MATTER OF:   : MISCELLANEOUS 
     : 
DAVID T. SHULICK   : NO. 18-mc-0171 

   

          ORDER 

 AND NOW, this 18th day of June, 2024, respondent having been ordered 

on June 13, 2024, to show cause, within thirty (30) days, why he should not be 

disbarred on consent from the practice of law in this court, retroactive to September 

11, 2018, and respondent having answered and not requested a hearing, it is hereby 

 ORDERED that respondent is disbarred on consent from the practice of 

law in this court, retroactive to September 11, 2018, and until further order of this court.  

   

     BY THE COURT: 

 

    

                    __s/Mitchell S. Goldberg______             
     MITCHELL S. GOLDBERG 
     Chief Judge 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
Eastern District of Pennsylvania 

United States Courthouse 
601 Market Street, Room 2609 
Philadelphia, PA 19106-1797 

 
 

George Wylesol                                                      Clerk’s Office                                           
 Clerk of Court                                                                                                        215-597-7704     
 

 
June 18, 2024 
 
 
 
 
David T. Shulick 
1499 Wesleys Run 
Gladwyne, PA  19035 
 
Dear Mr. Shulick: 
 

In response to your request, you were admitted to the United States 
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania on March 24, 1998,  
and are currently listed as being disbarred on consent with the United States 
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.   
 
 Please feel free to contact Gail Olson of my staff at 267-299-7060 if you 
require additional information on this matter. 

 
Sincerely,   

 
 
                        
Clerk of Court 

 
 
 
 
By:  /s/ Gail R. Olson                    _                                              
       Gail R. Olson, Deputy Clerk 
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PENNSYLVANIA LAW LICENSE 
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DAVID T. SHULICK 

PENNSYLVANIA LAW LICENSE 

REINSTATEMENT PETITION PACKAGE 
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DESCRIPTION: Pennsylvania CLE 

Over 100 CLE Hours since 2021 

Over 36 hours, 12 ethics, including Bridge the Gap within last 12 months 

Instructions 6(c)







EXHIBIT TO QUESTIONS 15 AND 16 

FACTS AND MATTERS TO CONSIDER 
FACTS TO JUSTIFY REINSTATEMENT RULE 218 (c) 

 
NOTE:  Two sections and exhibits to this document 

 
 How do I demonstrate my profound remorse and present clear and convincing 

evidence that I have the moral qualifications, integrity, and competency to be admitted 

to the bar, and that said admission will benefit society?   

 First and foremost, I accept complete responsibility for my criminal conduct that 

occurred in or around 2010-2012.  Not a single day goes by when I do not reflect on this 

case with great pain and anguish.  While I have worked hard to rehabilitate myself and 

study the lack of judgment and factors that belied such behavior, I will always remain 

profoundly remorseful. 

 By way of background, I was born November 20, 1969.  By 9th grade, my desire to 

become a lawyer was so strong that I started to clerk for an attorney in Philadelphia as a 

high school job before graduation in June 1987.  On March 10, 1991, as a senior in college, 

I received a phone call to drive to Hahnemann Hospital on an emergency basis.  Once 

there I learned that my beloved mother had been severely injured in an automobile 

accident, and just a few hours after arrival she died.  I then learned that the circumstances 

of this accident were unspeakable – a student from George Washington High School in 

Northeast, Philadelphia (my alma mater) had been drinking and broadsided the 

passenger side of the vehicle that my father was driving.   

 My subsequent entry into law school a few months later was marred by this 

immense tragedy which caused me, the oldest child, to have to assume full responsibility 

for the welfare of my sister since our father was physically injured and emotionally 

distraught, having to handle both the legal and financial affairs of our family.  Because of 

this tragedy, my admission to the Pennsylvania Bar had a deeper significance above and 



beyond the privilege itself.  It was the successful completion of a dream that I shared with 

my beloved mother, Judith, who was deprived of the opportunity to see me reach this 

goal.  A goal that we would frequently talk about.  Accordingly, the pain of losing my 

license to practice law was exponential and the circumstances surrounding that loss 

exponentially increased the remorse and associated suffering.   

 I loved being an attorney, helping others, and passionately advocating for their 

rights.  Because of my personal history, I understood at the deepest levels what an honor 

it was to be able to serve people as their lawyer.  I understood what it meant to have that 

responsibility and I always took it seriously and passionately.  In fact, by the time a short 

four years passed after being bestowed that honor, I had so many people who called upon 

me to advise and help them with their legal needs, I was able to open my own law practice 

at the age of 29 in 1999.  I never stopped my service to the profession, becoming (to my 

knowledge) the youngest Board Member of the Philadelphia Trial Lawyers Association 

in its history.  I also regularly engaged in vast amounts of charitable endeavors which 

perpetuated the memory of my beloved mother, Judith B. Shulick.  My work as an 

attorney was well recognized and highly regarded, earning me the title of Superlawyer 

year after year, and the Legal Intelligencer published stories regarding some of the cases 

that I handled. 

  The criminal case against me was so cataclysmic that on many occasions I was left 

contemplating suicide.  The amount of shame and remorse that I feel and felt is not 

capable of being put into words.  As a result, I fully cooperated with Disciplinary Counsel 

and voluntarily surrendered my law license and consented to disbarment.  The crimes 

occurred between 2010 and 2012—more than 12 years ago.  

 In addition, it is critical to understand the context and history of the case and 

crimes involved.  In 1999, after I formed my own law practice, I had the privilege of 

acquiring Unique Educational Experience, Inc. (‘UEE’) from a client who would not sell 

their business to their son, my former college roommate, unless the young lawyer that 



they trusted would also purchase half the corporation so they could be assured it would 

be managed responsibly and they would receive their earn out over five  years.  Together 

in our twenties, we acquired the business which was a private school and just a few years 

later (after my partner’s parents were paid off) he decided to quit the business.   

 At the time, I was a young husband and father with two young daughters.  I 

practiced law full-time and never wanted to own UEE on my own.  I tried to sell his half 

to others unsuccessfully.  I felt that I had no choice but to continue UEE and relied upon 

a large executive team to manage the business that I owned.  I was negligent in my duties 

to UEE. In retrospect, it was far too much for me to handle and my reliance upon others 

in positions of trust was misplaced. 

Concerning the charges and crimes at issue, UEE was required to hire a certified 

minority contractor for 10% of its gross annual revenue from its Philadelphia School 

District contracts.  During 2010-2012 period, this amounted to approximately $4.5M per 

year, requiring a payment of $450,000 per year to a minority contractor.  I was connected 

with Chaka Fattah, Jr. and his certified firm through the Philadelphia School District and 

Governor Rendell’s Office.   

At all times, UEE had a detailed written contract with Mr. Fattah’s company 

requiring him to deploy at least 84% of the gross funds paid to him by UEE each year on 

budgeted services that were part of a single-page budget in one of two of the Philadelphia 

school contracts.  Notably, the larger school contract (named after my Mother, the Judith 

B. Shulick Memorial Education Center at 4333 Kelly Drive a/k/a DVHS Kelly) received 

about $3.5M per year and was not involved in the criminal case in any way.  The second 

Philadelphia contract for the Southwest School was the only school involved in the 

criminal case and received approximately $1M per year.  Unbeknownst to me at the time, 

Mr. Fattah had embezzled a large portion of the minority contract funds his company 

received from UEE rendering UEE non-compliant with the Southwest School 

Philadelphia contract and in violation of 11 U.S.C. 666.  As the owner of UEE, I was and 



am criminally responsible for the gross malfeasance of my subcontractor.  The restitution 

owed related to this matter is, notably, jointly and severally owed by me and Chaka 

Fattah, Jr. because of the predicate fact pattern.   See, Exhibit ‘15/16-A’ attached for 

critical factual context. 

I am also responsible for forwarding a letter to PNC Bank falsely stating the 

amount of Mr. Fattah’s salary as part of his Offer and Compromise in violation of 18 

U.S.C. Sec. 1344 and for filing false tax returns in violation of 26 U.S.C. Sec. 7206 during 

the same period.  As the owner, no matter how overwhelmed, reliant on staff, or 

otherwise, it was my personal responsibility to check the Offer and Compromise package 

Mr. Fattah submitted before allowing my letter to be included inaccurately and it was my 

personal responsibility to make certain that every dollar of claimed UEE business 

expenses were proper.  The fact that the amounts are small or zero does not negate the 

personal responsibility I had to make sure these items were 100% accurate.   

Furthermore, there are mitigating factors that I want to bring to your attention.  

The pressures of owning my law practice and being responsible for UEE caused my life-

long anxiety to become uncontrollable.  By 2007, I started to suffer spontaneous panic 

attacks.  I turned to drugs and alcohol on a habitual basis to cope.  I proactively sought 

medical treatment from Dr. Bruce Miller, Psychologist, and Dr. John Rusk, Psychiatrist.  

Dr. Rusk prescribed me Xanax which became its own addiction.  By the time the crimes 

at issue in the case occurred (2010-12), I was under the influence, abusing and addicted 

to these substances to cope – and – I had started treatment.  I accept full responsibility for 

this past addiction.  I have now been the beneficiary of long-term treatment and I have 

been clean and sober for approximately 6 years.   

 Finally, I also maintained my marriage and relationships with my wife, Cherie, 

and my daughters, Julia, and Skylar, throughout this personal upheaval.  Cherie stood 

by my side before, during and after the trial and incarceration and helped me keep intact 

deep, close, and loving relationships with both my daughters, Julia age 18, now 



graduating from Harriton High School with Honors and attending Penn State University 

and Skylar, age 16, a Junior at Harriton High School.    

 Surrendering my law license and leaving my wife and daughters to report to 

prison was unspeakably painful.  So too has been reintegration into society.  Since 

arriving home on November 19, 2020, I awake every weekday to exercise and meditate, 

then tackle all personal and professional responsibilities until I go to sleep – without any 

drugs (prescription or otherwise) to cope and I remain clean and sober.  I practice learned 

pro-social coping strategies to face life’s challenges head-on each day and work hard to 

re-establish myself as a Father and member of our community – so my wife and 

daughters and others can once again be proud of me.   

 In this regard, I have volunteered regularly for the Ardmore Bethel AME Church, 

Jewish Relief Agency, Petey Greene Program, Gitlin Foundation and worked as a 

paralegal for free to help someone save her home from foreclosure.  I volunteer 

extensively for our community on the Northwood Homeowners Association Board.  I’ve 

been gainfully employed since coming home from prison in November 2020 and have 

managed to earn enough to pay my restitution on time every month per the Court Order 

and to pay my fine of $20,000 in its entirety. I have also taken over 100 hours of continuing 

legal education classes and reviewed online legal periodicals and other legal materials 

regularly.   

 Again, I am deeply remorseful for my actions.  I have worked hard to become a 

productive and contributing member of society once again.  I maintained a cohesive and 

loving relationship with my wife and children during my entire punishment.  I have 

worked day and night to make amends to my family, and society in general, and to make 

myself a better person through this experience. I sought extensive long-term treatment 

for drug and alcohol addictions suffered during the period of my crimes and completed 

extensive Drug & Alcohol programs and long-term therapy to develop pro-social skills.   



 I attach letters of support from Daniel Erhlbaum, Chair of the Jewish Relief 

Agency, Pastor Carolyn Cavanaugh of the Ardmore Bethel AME Church, Rabbi David 

Straus of Main Line Reform Temple, Attorneys Mark Jaffe, Esquire, Stuart Lundy, 

Esquire, Edwin Guyer, Esquire, Andrew Swain, Esquire, David Smoger, M.D., Sally 

Smoger, SLP, Dr. Andrew Rosner, Jeffrey Abramowitz, and David Cohen (my first legal 

client) in support of this Petition.  Also attached is a letter from Kenneth Grunfeld, 

Esquire and Jennifer Grunfeld, Esquire (Kenneth is a former member of the Pennsylvania 

Supreme Court Disciplinary Board). Report of Dr. Moss Jackson, Psychologist will be 

filed separately. 

 

 

NOTE:  See Exhibit 15/16-A, attached with exhibits that follows 

  



EXHIBIT 15/16-A – CRITICAL FACTUAL CONTEXT 

a. The entire record (trial and appeal) did not have the benefit of defense testimony of CPA and 
CFE expert witness Hamilton who studied every expenditure, loan account, vendor record, 
school contract, and his planned expert opinion testimony (see Affidavit attached) that 
$2,041M was spent on the Southwest school – MORE than what the District paid UEE under 
the Southwest contract over the two year period at issue.  The only reason the jury, trial Court 
and appellate Court did not receive this evidence is that my Defense Counsel never complied 
with Rule 16 (and a side-bar warning before trial by the Court that I was never told about) and 
it was therefore excluded by the Court in the middle of my trial when Mr. Hamilton took the 
stand and started to offer these expert opinions.  (see attached) 
 

b. My crime under 18 U.S.C. Sec. 666 required proving criminal ‘misapplication’ of a contract 
budget.  The legal definition of criminal ‘misapplication’ applied in my case was challenged 
by my appellate counsel unsuccessfully because it was changed by the United States Supreme 
Court when it overturned the 3rd Circuit just a few short months after my conviction which 
would have negated my crime.  (see attached) 

 
c. I committed a crime by violating 18 U.S.C. Sec. 666 and spending a significant portion of the 

revenue UEE received from the District under the Southwest contract by ‘misapplying’ that 
revenue in that I paid for expenses I considered required to operate a successful school in 
accordance with an Educational Plan that was part of the contract. 
 

d. My crimes under 18 U.S.C. Sec. 666 consist of the following payments:  (a) $47,015 over two 
years for liability insurance required by the contract for the Southwest school; (b) $140,516 for 
computers and IT for the Southwest School for its contractually required computer based 
curriculum; (c) $100,000+/- for a portion of the UEE’s Chief Academic Officer’s salary required 
by the Southwest contract, other payments made solely to benefit the Southwest school as Mr. 
Hamilton would have so testified.   

 
e. To make this simple, even though the $2,041M was spent on Southwest, if it was not in the 

budget that was part of the contract, it was considered criminal ‘misapplication’ and all of the 
restitution in my case emanates from this ‘misapplication’.  When UEE made these expenses 
inconsistent with the contract budget, the contract was not even in existence and I was not 
aware it would violate any criminal statute, and all such expenses were made pursuant to an 
Educational Plan that was ultimately made part of the contract as Exhibit A. 

 
f. In fact, over 500 students successfully graduated the DVHS Southwest program from this 

revenue and these expenditures and Southwest was one of the highest performing alternative 
schools in the District at that time at the lowest cost winning several awards.  

 
g. The Southwest contract and how this budget came about:  In July, 2010 the District approached 

me and asked me to take over a failing school by a competitor in Southwest, Philadelphia.  
UEE’s Chief Academic Officer (the individual and corresponding expenditure referenced 
above) provided the District a UEE Educational Plan in July, 2010 which became Exhibit A to 
the contract.   

 



h. In order to be open and operating by September at the start of the school year (as required by 
the District) Southwest was staffed and constructed between July, 2010 and September, 2010 
in accordance with the UEE Educational Plan provided to the District months before any 
contract came into existence came into existence, which attached the budget as Exhibit B.  

 
i. The contract was executed months later after these expenditures in November, 2010 and 

contained an Order of Precedence clause that specifically stated that Exhibit A, the UEE 
Educational Plan superseded Exhibit B, the budget at issue in this case.  The Court held that 
this contract clause was not a defense in a criminal setting.   

 
j. Notably, the victim District wanted to continue doing business with UEE even after the FBI 

investigation that led to this case.  The District expressly offered UEE contracts for Southwest 
and other schools into 2012-2013 and beyond.  However, myself and my family made a 
decision never to do business again with the Philadelphia school district, closed both schools 
(Southwest and Kelly) and extricated ourselves out of Philadelphia politics. 
 

k. I never knew who Congressman Fattah was.  I met him and his son one day on September 17, 
2009 when they showed up unannounced in my law office at 1635 Market Street to introduce 
themselves.  Within weeks, the District’s highest officials, Arlene Ackerman (now dead after 
embroiled in a highly publicized scandal) contacted me and suggested strongly that I use Mr. 
Fattah’s certified minority services to comply with a District requirement that UEE spend at 
least 10% of its District revenue on a certified minority contractor.  At that time, each District 
contract had a ‘cancellation for convenience’ clause in its contracts.  UEE, my company, 
complied paid Mr. Fattah’s certified minority company the District’s required 10% and 
rightfully expected his company to provide all enumerated services.  This arrangement was 
ultimately defined by the Government as a conspiracy.    

 
l. To be clear, I absolutely agreed that Mr. Fattah’s company could earn an ordinary and 

reasonable profit from UEE’s payments, and use that profit to pay off his student debt 
obligations which he frequently complained about, as was his right.  However, I never agreed 
to personally benefit in any way from any payment UEE paid to his company under the 
required MWBE contract clause. At the time I never considered this arrangement to be an 
‘elaborate’ conspiracy. It was a simple contractual arrangement required by the District to 
provide certified minority services for all UEE schools under a written contract between UEE 
and Mr. Fattah’s certified minority company, 259 Strategies, LLC, wherein he took over 
payment of previous UEE staff members including social workers.  Notably during this 
contract it was discovered that Mr. Fattah gambled away UEE payments at the Sugarhouse 
Casino and when discovered, UEE not only made up those payments to long term valued staff, 
but he was fired by me personally.  He was later rehired only after the Congressman and the 
School District both personally contacted me and made the specific request to do so noting the 
‘cancellation for convenience’ clauses in both the Kelly and Southwest contracts with the 
Philadelphia School District. 
 

m. While putting my case in context, I unequivocally take full and complete responsibility for all 
of my criminal conduct that led to my convictions and I humbly and deeply pray for remorse, 
understanding and a second chance to be a member of the Pennsylvania bar.  
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